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Dear Shareholders,

MESSAGE FROM 
THE MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

Chairman & Managing Director 
 Armour Display Systems  Ltd.

Sahil Mangla

It is with immense pride and a profound sense of responsibility that I present the Annual 
Report for FY 2024–25, a transforma�ve year that marks a defining chapter in Armour Display 
Systems’ journey. Since assuming the role of promoters in May 2024, we have pursued an 
ambi�ous vision to scale opera�ons, seize new opportuni�es, and deliver enduring value. In 
just one year, we have achieved record-breaking revenue, deepened strategic partnerships, 
and expanded our footprint, posi�oning Armour as a leader in India’s dynamic digital out-of-
home (DOOH) adver�sing landscape.

For FY 2024–25, we recorded revenues of ₹75 crore, reflec�ng robust growth over the 
previous year and underscoring the resilience of our business model. This milestone was 
driven by our pioneering Public-Private Partnership (PPP) with Indian Railways, a cornerstone 
of our success. The Government’s Amrit Bharat Sta�on Scheme has transformed over 100 
major railway sta�ons into modern, accessible transport hubs equipped with world-class 
ameni�es. Concurrently, the introduc�on of Vande Bharat Express trains has revolu�onized 
transit media by offering premium digital pla�orms that resonate with an affluent, tech-savvy 
demographic—primarily the 26–45 age group. These trains, equipped with state-of-the-art 
digital infrastructure, provide a cap�ve audience for brands seeking high-impact visibility.

 Our integrated audio-visual display systems now span 52 major railway sta�ons, delivering 
real-�me passenger informa�on alongside adver�sing that achieves an impressive 71% brand 
recall rate. This strategic focus on transit media has not only elevated our market presence but 
also set a new benchmark for innova�on in the DOOH sector.

A pivotal achievement this year has been the unwavering confidence of our investors and 
private funds, whose support has fueled our expansion into new geographies and investments 
in large-format digital assets. These resources have strengthened our leadership in transit and 
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DOOH adver�sing, enabling us to capture a growing share of India’s rapidly evolving media 
ecosystem.

Equally transforma�ve is the acquisi�on by our parent company, Sapphire Media Limited, of Big 
FM (Reliance Broadcast Network Limited) in May 2025. As one of India’s most iconic radio brands, 
with 58 sta�ons reaching 1,200 towns and 50,000 villages, Big FM diversifies our group’s por�olio 
and unlocks powerful cross-pla�orm synergies. For Armour, this acquisi�on opens new avenues to 
integrate audio, visual, and digital channels, delivering unmatched reach and value to our clients. 
By combining DOOH with radio, we are crea�ng innova�ve, omnichannel solu�ons that amplify 
brand impact and drive measurable outcomes.

The broader out-of-home (OOH) industry in India con�nues its upward trajectory, growing 12.9% 
in 2023 to ₹4,140 crore and projected to reach ₹5,961 crore by 2028, driven by digital and transit 
media. DOOH, in par�cular, is expanding at a 14% CAGR, with revenues expected to grow from 
USD 284 million in 2024 to USD 620 million by 2030. Armour is excep�onally well-posi�oned to 
capitalize on this momentum, leveraging our exper�se in transit media and advanced 
technologies like AI and programma�c adver�sing. 

Our strategic roadmap is clear:
•  Deepen our partnership with Indian Railways while exploring new transit hubs, including bus 
terminals, metro sta�ons, and airports.
•  Expand our digital footprint with high-impact video walls and mul�lingual, data-driven content 
tailored to diverse audiences.
•  Harness Sapphire Media’s integrated ecosystem, now bolstered by Big FM, to deliver seamless 
mul�-channel media solu�ons.
•  Maintain financial discipline to ensure sustainable growth and long-term shareholder value.

Looking ahead, we are confident in sustaining this momentum. We project revenues of ₹125 crore 
in FY 2025–26, with an ambi�ous target of ₹250 crore by FY 2029, driven by our leadership in 
transit DOOH and strategic synergies across Sapphire Media’s por�olio. These goals are 
underpinned by India’s urbaniza�on, smart city ini�a�ves, and a burgeoning digital economy, 
which will see the OOH market reach ₹7,900 crore by 2027, with DOOH comprising nearly 40% of 
the share.

None of these achievements would have been possible without the relentless dedica�on of our 
employees and leadership team, who have embraced this transforma�ve phase with passion and 
excellence. I extend my hear�elt gra�tude to our shareholders, investors, clients, and partners for 
their unwavering trust and support. Your belief in our vision fuels our drive to innovate and excel.

As we mark one year under new promoter leadership, I am immensely proud of our progress and 
energized by the opportuni�es ahead. Armour is no longer just a transit media company; we are 
evolving into a dynamic, integrated media ecosystem that connects millions of people and brands 
daily. With your con�nued support, I am confident that the most exci�ng chapters of our journey 
lie ahead.

Thank you.
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Q1 
A1. DDIS integrates train informa�on with adver�sing, making it a dual-purpose pla�orm — both a 
public u�lity and a commercial asset. Video walls, on the other hand, offer unmatched scale and 
impact, par�cularly at high-foo�all sta�ons in metros like Kolkata, Mumbai, and Chennai. These 
formats provide adver�sers premium visibility and passengers a modernized experience. Together, 
they enhance brand recall, diversify our revenue streams, and reinforce Armour's posi�oning as a 
pioneer in digital OOH media.

Armour has recently introduced Digital Display Informa�on Systems (DDIS) and large 
video wall pla�orms. What value do these bring to the business model?

Q2 
A2. What sets us apart is the “must see–must hear” model, where audio-visual content is 
integrated with railway announcements. Unlike sta�c billboards, our DDIS and video walls are 
dynamic, mul�lingual, and unavoidable in transit hubs where dwell �me is high. In addi�on, 
automated proof-of-play through Indian Railways ensures adver�sers have verified transparency. 
This credibility and innova�on are key differen�ators that build long-term investor confidence.

With increasing compe��on in the OOH sector, how do these products strengthen 
Armour's compe��ve edge?

Q&A 
with Mr. Sahil Mangla, Chairman & Managing Director

Armour Display Systems Ltd.

A3. Sapphire's acquisi�on of BIG FM adds immense value to the group ecosystem. It gives us access 
to one of India's largest radio networks, which complements our digital OOH presence. For clients, 
it means integrated adver�sing solu�ons spanning radio, print, digital, and transit media under one 
umbrella. For investors, this synergy means greater cross-selling opportuni�es, stronger 
bargaining power with adver�sers, and a more resilient revenue model.

Armour is a subsidiary of Sapphire Media Ltd., which recently acquired BIG FM. How 
does this holding company rela�onship benefit Armour?

A4. Private placement allows us to bring in strategic investors who not only provide growth capital 
but also industry exper�se. The funds will be channelled into expanding our DDIS footprint, 
installing more video walls at key sta�ons, and enhancing our technology backbone for content 
delivery and repor�ng. Unlike debt, private placement strengthens our balance sheet without 
adding financial strain, while giving investors a direct stake in our growth story.

Many investors want to understand how private placement funding will help Armour. 
Can you elaborate?

A5. By FY30, we are targe�ng a five-fold revenue growth — from ₹75 Cr in FY25 to ₹430 Cr. Our 
focus will be on deepening our transit media dominance through DDIS and video walls, while 
leveraging group synergies with BIG FM, print, and digital pla�orms. The vision is clear: to posi�on 
Armour as India's most trusted and innova�ve digital OOH partner, delivering value for brands, 
convenience for passengers, and strong returns for investors.

Finally, what is your vision for Armour in the next five years?
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WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
MESSAGE FROM THE 

Whole Time Director
Aditya Vashishtha

Warm Regards,

It is my privilege to address you as we reflect on a 
transforma�ve year of progress and opera�onal excellence at 
Armour Display Systems Ltd. FY 2024–25 has been a milestone 
period, marked by strategic execu�on, network expansion, and 
a steadfast commitment to delivering unparalleled value to our 
stakeholders. Our efforts have focused on strengthening 
opera�ons, enhancing efficiencies, and building enduring 
partnerships with adver�sers and agencies, cemen�ng 
Armour’s posi�on as a leader in India’s rapidly evolving digital 
out-of-home (DOOH) adver�sing landscape.
This year, we significantly expanded our digital display 
network, extending our presence across 52 major railway 
sta�ons through our pioneering Public-Private Partnership 
(PPP) with Indian Railways. Aligned with the Amrit Bharat 
Sta�on Scheme, which has modernized over 100 sta�ons into 
world-class transport hubs, and the rollout of Vande Bharat 
Express trains, our integrated audio-visual systems deliver real-
�me passenger informa�on and high-impact adver�sing. With 
a remarkable 71% brand recall rate, our pla�orms resonate 
with the affluent, tech-savvy 26–45 age group, making Armour 
a preferred choice for brands seeking visibility in premium 
transit environments. This unique “must-see, must-hear” 
ecosystem sets us apart in the compe��ve OOH market, where 
DOOH is projected to grow at a 14% CAGR, reaching USD 620 
million by 2030. 
A cornerstone of our success has been our relentless focus on 
opera�onal excellence. We have upgraded our scheduling and 
repor�ng systems, seamlessly integrated with Indian Railways’ 
infrastructure, to provide adver�sers with real-�me 
transparency and robust proof of performance. By adop�ng 
advanced technologies—such as AI-driven content 
personaliza�on and programma�c adver�sing pla�orms—we 
have enhanced campaign effec�veness, achieving a 32% 
increase in engagement for data-driven ads. These 
improvements have strengthened our credibility, earning the 
trust of leading brands and agencies across retail, FMCG, and 
technology sectors, which collec�vely drive over 40% of India’s 
DOOH growth. Looking ahead, we are aligning our growth 
strategy with the evolving demands of commuters and 
adver�sers. 
The rising appe�te for high-quality digital assets, mul�lingual 
content, and hyper-localized campaigns presents significant 
opportuni�es. Armour is well-posi�oned to capitalize on these 
trends, leveraging our exper�se in transit media to expand 
beyond railways into bus terminals, metro sta�ons, and 
airports. Our integra�on with Sapphire Media Limited’s 
broader ecosystem, bolstered by the May 2025 acquisi�on of 
Big FM (58 sta�ons reaching 1,200 towns), enables us to deliver 
innova�ve omnichannel solu�ons that combine DOOH, radio, 
and digital media for unmatched reach and impact. 
With India’s OOH market projected to reach ₹5,961 crore by 
2028, and DOOH comprising nearly 40% by 2027, our strategic 
roadmap ensures we remain at the forefront of this dynamic 
industry. Our long-term success rests on three core pillars: 
opera�onal excellence, a culture of innova�on and 
accountability, and a commitment to sustainable stakeholder 
value. These principles guide every ini�a�ve, from deploying 

large-format video walls to pilo�ng eco-friendly displays 
aligned with ESG goals. As we navigate challenges such as 
regulatory complexi�es and infrastructure costs, our focus 
on technology and partnerships will drive resilience and 
growth.
I extend my deepest gra�tude to our dedicated 
employees, whose passion and adaptability have been 
instrumental in upholding Armour’s high standards of 
delivery and service. My hear�elt thanks also go to our 
shareholders, clients, and partners for their unwavering 
trust, which fuels our ambi�on to build a scalable, future-
ready organiza�on.As we move forward, I am confident 
that Armour Display Systems will con�nue to redefine 
transit media, delivering innova�ve solu�ons that connect 
brands with millions of consumers daily. With your 
con�nued support, we are poised to shape the future of 
India’s DOOH industry.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Digital Out-of-Home (DOOH) adver�sing in India refers to dynamic, internet-connected 
displays in public spaces, such as LED billboards, transit screens, mall digital signage, and street 
furniture with programmable content. Unlike tradi�onal sta�c OOH, DOOH enables real-�me 
updates, programma�c buying, and data-driven targe�ng, making it highly interac�ve and 
measurable. As of September 2025, the sector is booming due to rapid urbaniza�on, increasing 
smartphone penetra�on (over 900 million users), and a shi� toward omnichannel marke�ng. 
DOOH now accounts for about 20-30% of the total OOH market, up from 12% in 2024, driven by 
events like the Delhi elec�ons, Maha Kumbh, and Asia Cup, which have boosted demand for 
flexible, high-impact campaigns. The industry benefits from India’s digital economy growth, 
with adver�sers leveraging AI and AR for personalized ads in high-traffic urban areas like 
Mumbai, Delhi, Bengaluru, and Chennai.

The India DOOH market was valued at approximately USD 284 million in 2024 and is es�mated 
to reach USD 300-320 million in 2025, reflec�ng a year-over-year growth of around 10-12%. 
Projec�ons indicate robust expansion, with the market forecasted to hit USD 620 million by 
2030 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 14% from 2025-2030. Alterna�ve es�mates 
suggest a value of USD 2.2 billion in 2024, growing to USD 6.3 billion by 2033 at an 11.86% 
CAGR, highligh�ng discrepancies due to varying inclusions of programma�c and place-based 
segments. Within the broader OOH market, which stands at USD 500.78 million in 2025 
(including tradi�onal formats), DOOH contributes significantly, with its share expected to rise 
from 20% in 2024 to 30% by end-2025.Growth is fueled by a 24% CAGR for DOOH revenues 
through 2027, supported by over 185,000 ac�ve screens across 50+ ci�es, 15% of which are 
premium large-format (over 100 inches). The sector’s expansion aligns with India’s overall 
adver�sing spend, projected to exceed $10 billion in 2025, with digital channels (including 
DOOH) capturing 73% globally but even higher in emerging markets like India. Asia-Pacific, led 
by India and China, is the fastest-growing region, with DOOH growing at 12.34% CAGR to USD 
38.71 billion by 2030.

Market Size and Growth
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MEET THE
LEADERSHIP TEAM

Aditya Vashishtha
Whole Time Director

Potnuru Santosh Kumar

Chief Financial Officer

Daksha Agarwal
Company Secretary

Sahil Mangla
Chairman & Managing Director

Armour Display Systems Limited is a trusted leader in India’s 
digital Out-of-Home (OOH) media sector, opera�ng at the 
intersec�on of technology, scale, and long-term partnerships. 
With over 15 years of experience and a renewed growth 
trajectory under new management, the company is posi�oned to 
deliver sustainable returns and value crea�on for its stakeholders.
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KEY
HIGHLIGHTS

AT A GLANCE

14+

coverage across India's busiest transit hubs

5X

projected in revenues by FY29

40+

average commuter engagement time

71%

demonstrated through independent surveys

57+

with integrated display systems

57+ Stations 

States 

Minute

Brand Recall 

 Growth 

Armour Display Systems Limited has emerged as one of 
the most innova�ve players in India's digital Out-of-
Home (OOH) ecosystem. By integra�ng adver�sing with 
passenger informa�on, we have created a unique 
communica�on pla�orm that delivers both public 
service and brand visibility.

Our footprint is steadily expanding, with digital 
networks already opera�onal across 14+ states and 
more than 57 high-traffic railway sta�ons. Each loca�on 
is equipped with integrated LED screens and video walls 
that combine informa�on on arrivals and departures 
with dynamic adver�sing slots — ensuring high 
engagement and consistent brand recall.

With audiences spending over 40 minutes on average at 
our loca�ons, Armour provides adver�sers unmatched 
dwell-�me exposure. This advantage, coupled with 
automated campaign monitoring and proof-of-play, 
ensures reliability and transparency that sets us apart 
from many conven�onal OOH operators.
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ARMOUR’S 
GEOGRAPHICAL
EXPANSION STRATEGY

Looking ahead, Armour is also evaluating government-led smart city and transit modernization 

projects as future growth engines. By combining our expertise in high-dwell-time transit 

environments with strong compliance in tender-based operations, we are well-positioned to 

expand into airports, bus depots, metro corridors, and other civic infrastructure spaces. This 

tender-driven, partnership-based expansion ensures that Armour not only scales rapidly but also 

strengthens its credibility as a trusted digital OOH leader in India.

Armour's expansion is anchored in strategic partnerships with Indian Railways and the active 

participation in government tenders that open up new transit media opportunities. Winning 

tenders under the Public-Private Partnership (PPP) model has allowed us to secure exclusive rights 

for installing Digital Display Information Systems (DDIS) and large-format video walls at some of 

the busiest railway stations in the country. This process ensures that our growth is transparent, 

structured, and aligned with national infrastructure development plans, giving advertisers 

confidence in the long-term stability of our media assets.

Our strategy is to extend beyond Tier 1 metros into Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities by actively bidding for 

regional railway and transport authority tenders. These locations, though often underserved by 

traditional advertising, are high-potential markets due to increasing urbanization, rising 

disposable incomes, and heavy reliance on rail and bus transit. By building a network that spans 

both metropolitan and regional hubs, Armour is creating a platform that delivers nationwide 

coverage while retaining strong hyper-local relevance for advertisers.
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Board of Directors

CORPORATE 
INFORMATION
At a Glance

TL-7, 3rd Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, 

Montieth Road Egmore, Chennai,

 Tamil Nadu, India, 600008

Registered Office: 

Armour Display Systems Limited is a 

public company committed to high 

standards of governance, transparency, 

and accountability, ensuring sustainable 

value creation for all its stakeholders.

A-154A, Second Floor Sector 63, 

Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida,

 Uttar Pradesh, India, 201301

Corporate Office: 

M/s. M S K G & CO., 

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0008262N)

Add: Head Office: 35, Akshardham 

Apartment, Pocket-3, Sector-19, 

Dwarka Delhi-110075

Con: 92677-70000

Email Id: mskgconnect@yahoo.com

Statutory Auditors

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Selenium Tower- B, Plot 31-32, 

Gachibowli, 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Serilingampally, Hyderabad-500 032,

Telangana, India 

Website:www.kfintech.com

Email: nvl.ipo@kfintech.com

SEBI vide Registration Number: 

INR000000221

Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents

Mr. Potnuru Santosh Kumar

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sahil Mangla
( Managing Director )

Mr. Aditya Vashistha
( Whole-time director )

Mrs. Sonal Garg
( Non- Executive Director )

Mr. Sahil Agarwal
( Independent Director )

Mr. Shankar Aggarwal
( Independent Director)

Ms. Daksha Agarwal

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer
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PATHWAY TO PROGRESS:  
BUILDING TOMORROW, TODAY

Accelerating Digital Growth

Armour Display Systems Limited is a pioneer in introducing the PPP 

model with Indian Railways, where we developed state-of-the-art 

integrated audio-visual digital display systems. These systems combine 

LED screens with public announcement functionality, delivering real-

time train information alongside advertising. This dual-purpose model 

has transformed railway stations into modern communication hubs, 

creating a unique Out-of-Home platform where brands can run TV-style 

commercials in high-dwell-time environments. By leading this 

innovation, Armour is far ahead of OOH players still limited to static 

billboards, offering advertisers a blend of brand exposure, excellent 

recall, and cost-effective reach across India's key cities.

Expanding Product Portfolio & Formats

Our journey is not limited to passenger information displays. Armour has 

consistently evolved by introducing large-format video walls, 

multilingual content capabilities, and interactive ad formats that 

redefine audience engagement. Unlike operators focusing only on 

visibility, we integrate information with entertainment, ensuring 

passengers pay attention to both service updates and advertising 

content. This innovative portfolio approach positions Armour as the first 

choice for advertisers seeking impactful transit media solutions.

Strengthening Market Penetration & Customer Trust

Armour's expansion strategy emphasizes wider geographical coverage 

and deeper commuter engagement. From metro hubs like Kolkata, 

Mumbai, Chennai to regional stations across Rajasthan, Uttar 

Pradesh,Bihar and Madhya Pradesh, our network already spans 57+ 

stations across 14+ states. With average dwell times of 40 minutes and a 

proven 71% brand recall rate, Armour ensures unmatched visibility 

compared to competitors. Our focus on verified proof-of-play, 

transparency, and audience trust makes us a reliable long-term partner 

for advertisers looking to scale campaigns across India.
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OUR CORE VALUES
Core Principles

Innovation  and Impact

Trust, Transparency,  and Accountability

Customer-Centric Growth

At Armour, innova�on is the founda�on of everything we do. We are constantly redefining Out-of-
Home (OOH) media by integra�ng technology with crea�vity to deliver campaigns that are both 
engaging and effec�ve. From Digital Display Informa�on Systems (DDIS) that combine passenger 
informa�on with adver�sing, to large-scale video walls that transform transit hubs into brand 
experiences, our pla�orms are designed to create measurable impact. By pioneering such formats 
in partnership with Indian Railways, we ensure our solu�ons remain future-ready, relevant, and 
impac�ul for both commuters and adver�sers.

We believe that credibility is the cornerstone of sustainable growth. Armour has built its reputa�on 
on trust, offering adver�sers complete transparency through automated proof-of-play and real-
�me campaign monitoring. Every screen we operate is backed by verified repor�ng, ensuring that 
brands receive exactly the value they are promised. This focus on accountability extends to all 
stakeholders — from our public sector partners to corporate clients — making Armour a 
dependable partner in India's fast-evolving media ecosystem.

Our mission goes beyond ad placements — it is about connec�ng brands with audiences in the 
most meaningful way. We focus on tailoring campaigns to diverse geographies and languages, 
maximizing cultural relevance and brand recall. By offering adver�sers high dwell-�me 
engagement zones at railway sta�ons and other transit points, we provide unmatched visibility and 
conversion poten�al. This customer-first approach not only drives results for brands but also 
strengthens Armour's long-term rela�onships, ensuring growth that is sustainable, inclusive, and 
deeply impac�ul.
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STRATEGIC ALLIANCES & PARTNERSHIPS

Armour Display Systems Limited has built strong alliances within India's transit 

and digital media ecosystem, enabling us to scale rapidly and deliver unmatched 

visibility for advertisers. Our most significant partnership is with Indian Railways 

under the PPP model, giving Armour exclusive access to high-footfall stations 

across the country. These collaborations allow us to integrate Digital Display 

Information Systems (DDIS) and video wall platforms as part of the passenger 

information infrastructure, creating a unique “must see–must hear” media 

channel.

Beyond railways, Armour is actively collaborating with bus terminals, metro 

projects, and organized retail environments to diversify touchpoints for 

advertisers. Each partnership is designed not just for ad placements, but for 

enhancing commuter engagement, ensuring that audiences interact with both 

essential travel information and brand messaging.

Through these strategic alliances, Armour is expanding its role from a transit 

media operator to a holistic digital OOH partner. By combining technology-driven 

display networks, transparency through automated proof-of-play, and high 

dwell-time exposure, we are reinforcing our leadership in India's digital OOH 

industry while offering advertisers national reach with hyper-local precision
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No�ce of the Fi�eenth Annual General Mee�ng of the members 
of Armour Display Systems Limited 

(Formerly known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 
thNOTICE is hereby given that the 15 Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) of the members of the Company,  

Armour Display Systems Limited, (Formerly known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) will be held  
thon Tuesday, 30  September 2025 at 01:00 PM (IST), at the Registered office of the company situated at TL7, 

rd3  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600008 to transact the  
following businesses:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited 

(Formerly known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 

 

Sd/- 

Daksha Agarwal 

Company Secretary 

                                                                                                                            

 
Date: September 05, 2025  
Place: Chennai 
 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company  for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of  Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Aditya Vashistha (DIN: 08580236), who re�res by  rota�on and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

2.
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NOTES:  
 
1. Appointment of Proxy and A�endance Slip: Sec�on 105 of the Act read with Rule 19 of the 

Companies  (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 provides for appointment of proxy to 

a�end and vote at a  general mee�ng on behalf of the member who is not able to physically a�end 

the AGM. 

 

2. Corporate shareholders/ins�tu�onal shareholders intending to send their authorized 
th

representa�ve(s) to  a�end and vote at the 15  AGM are requested to send from their registered e-

mail address, scan copy of  the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority Le�er, etc. authorizing their 

representa�ve(s) to vote, to the  Company’s e-mail ID at compliance@armourds.com

3. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses, bank account details and mobile 

number are  requested to register the same with their Depository Par�cipants (“DP”) since the 

shares are held by them  in electronic Form.  

 

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 

provisions of the  Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, there are no unclaimed 

dividend amounts pending for  transfer. 

 

5. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 

ATTEND  AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

COMPANY. The  instrument appoin�ng the proxy, to be effec�ve, must be deposited at the Company's 

Registered Office,  duly completed, and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the mee�ng. 

Proxies submi�ed on  behalf of limited companies, socie�es, etc., must be supported by appropriate 

resolu�ons/authority, as  applicable. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 

fi�y (50) and holding in the  aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In 

case a proxy is proposed to be  appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying vo�ng  rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other 

person or shareholder.

6. In case of joint holders a�ending the Mee�ng, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 

names will  be en�tled to vote. 

 

7. The Members/Proxies are requested to bring the a�endance slip duly filled in for a�ending the 

Mee�ng. 

 

8. All the documents referred to in the No�ce are annexed thereto including the Annual Report for 
th

the financial  year 2024-25 and No�ce of the 15  Annual General Mee�ng are open for inspec�on 
rdby the Members,  without any fees, at the Registered Office Situated at TL-7, 3  Floor, Alsa Mall, 

No.4, Mon�eth Road Egmore,  Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600008 of the Company between 11.00 

a.m. and 01.00 p.m. on all working days  up to the date of the Mee�ng and the same shall also be 

made available for inspec�on by Members at the  Mee�ng.

9. Details of Directors, re�ring by rota�on at the ensuing Mee�ng are annexed to the No�ce pursuant  

Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs (SS-2), issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of 

India as  Annexure – I. 

10. In line with the Green Ini�a�ve and pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and  the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, and General  Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the Annual Report for the Financial 

Year 2024–2025, is available on the Company’s website at 

mailto:compliance@armourds.com
mailto:compliance@armourds.com
mailto:compliance@armourds.com
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GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 

1. Members are requested to send all communica�on rela�ng to shares to the Company’s Registrar 

and  Share Transfer Agent at KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies 

Private  Limited) Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Hyderabad– 50003. 

2. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding under Sec�on 

170 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Register of Contracts 

maintained under  Sec�on 189 of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder are 

available for inspec�on at the registered office of the Company. 

3. Members holding shares either in demat or physical mode who are in receipt of No�ce, may cast 

their  votes at the AGM 

Date: September 05, 2025 
Place: Chennai 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited 

(Formerly known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 

Sd/- 

Daksha Agarwal 

Company Secretary 

h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com.Shareholders who wish to receive a physical copy  of the Annual 

Report may send a request email to the Company at info@armourdigitalooh.com.

11. Route Map showing Direc�ons to reach to the venue of the Mee�ng is given at the end of this 

No�ce. 
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The relevant details of Directors who is proposed to be re-appointed Directors of the Company, as required  

under SS-2 issued by the Company Secretaries of India are as under; 

 

Par�culars Name of the Director 

Mr. Aditya Vashistha 

DIN 08580236 

Date of birth and Age 10-03-1981 and Age: 44 years  

Qualifica�on  B.Com (Bachelor of Commerce)  

Experience He is an accomplished entrepreneur. He have  prolific 
career spanning 22 years across  media and digital. He is 
a seasoned media  marke�ng veteran having 
contributed to the  growth stories of media houses such 
as The  Hindustan Times, Amar Ujala and Dainik  Jagran. 
He envision an inclusive media room  - on the one hand, 
making news and  informa�on available to the 
grassroots levels  of the country in local languages; and 
on the  other, reaching out to the metropolitan and  
satellite towns with news and views that  ma�er to 
them. 

Rela�onship with other Directors, Manager and  
other Key Managerial Personnel of the  Company 

Remunera�on last drawn by such Person, if  Month  
applicable and remunera�on sought to be paid 

Date of first appointment on the Board 22/05/2024 

Shareholding in the company Holds 300 Equity Shares 

Directorship Details of the Board 1. Reliance Broadcast Network Limited 

2. Sapphire Media Service Private  Limited 
3. Sapphire Media Limited 

4. Amor Adver�sing Media Private  Limited 

5. Janbhawna Times Private Limited 

 
Name of listed en��es in which person also Nil  holds 
the directorship and  membership/  chairmanship of 
Commi�ees of other Boards 

Mr. Aditya Vashistha is not disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) or disqualified and/or  
debarred by virtue of any order passed by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate  
Affairs, any Court or any such other Statutory Authority, to be appointed / re-appointed / con�nue as a director in 
any company  

Nil 

Rs. 1,00,000/ Per

Nature of appointment (appointment / re Appointment 
is liable to re�re by rota�on appointment) 

Terms and Condi�ons of appointment / re-
Appointment as Whole-�me Director appointment 

Date: September 05, 2025 
Place: Chennai 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited 

(Formerly known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 
 Sd/- 

Daksha Agarwal 

                 Company Secretary 
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Form No. MGT-11 

 

Proxy Form 

 

[Pursuant to Sec�on 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies  

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN:  U74900TN2010PLC078047 

Name of the Company: Armour Display Systems Limited (Formerly known as Armour 

Display Systems  Private Limited) 
rdRegistered Office: TL-7, 3  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road Egmore,  

Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600008  

E-mail Id: compliance@armourds.com. 

Folio No./Client Id: 

DP. Id: 

 

Name of the 
member(s) 

Registered Address 

Email ID: 

Folio No./Client ID 

DP ID 

I/ We being the member(s) of ______________________shares of the above named 
Company hereby 
appoint:  

1 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

Name: 
 
Address: 
 
Email ID: 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 
 
Email ID: 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 
 
Email ID: 

Or failing him 

Or failing him 

Or failing him 
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th
as my/ our proxy to a�end and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ behalf at the 15  Annual 
General  Mee�ng of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 1:00 P.M. at 

rd
the Registered office  of the Company situated at TL-7, 3  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road 
Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu,  India, 600008-- and at any adjournment thereof in respect of 
such resolu�ons as are indicated below:

No. Resolu�on Types of resolu�on For Against 

1. Ordinary  
Resolu�on 

 

2. Ordinary  
Resolu�on 

 

Signed this ________day of _______________, 2025 
 
__________________________  (Signature of the 
Shareholder) 
 

                                                                                                            Sign across revenue stamp 

_______________________ ____________________________ _____________________________
(Signature of the first proxy (Signature of the second proxy (Signature of the third proxy 
holder) holder) holder) 

Note 
1) This Form of the proxy in order to be effec�ve should be duly completed and deposited at 
the Registered  Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the Mee�ng. 
 
 2) A proxy need not be a member of the Company.  
 
1) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and holding in 

aggregate not more  than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carry vo�ng rights.  
 

2) If a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital carrying vo�ng rights may 
appoint a single  person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other 
member.  
 

3) In case of Joint holder, the vote of the senior who tender as vote, whether in person or by 
proxy, shall be  accepted to the exclusion to the vote of other joint holders. Seniority shall 
be determined by the order in  which the name stand in the register of members.  

Af�ix revenue 
stamp 

To receive, consider and adopt the  
audited standalone financial  
statements of the Company for the  
financial year ended March 31, 2025,  
together with the Reports of the  Board 
of Directors and Auditors  thereon. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. 
Aditya Vashistha (DIN: 08580236),  
who re�res by rota�on and being  
eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment 
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1) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from 

a�ending in person  and vo�ng at the Mee�ng.  
 

2) This is op�onal please put a �ck mark ( ) in appropriate column against the resolu�on indicated 
above. In  case of members wishes his/her vote to be used differently, he/she should indicate 
the number of shares  under the columns “For”, “Against”. In case the members leave the 
column(s) blank, the proxy will be  en�tled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate.  
 

3) An instrument of Proxy duly filled, stamped and signed, is valid only for the Mee�ng to 
which it relates  including any adjournment thereof. 
 

 9) An instrument of Proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped. Unstamped or inadequately 
stamped Proxies  or Proxies upon which the stamps have not been cancelled are invalid. 
 
1) The Proxy-holder should prove his iden�ty at the �me of a�ending the mee�ng. 

 
 11) An authorised representa�ve of a body corporate or of the President of India or of the 
Governor of a  State, holding shares in a company, may appoint a Proxy under his signature.  
 
1) A proxy form which does not state the name of the Proxy should not be considered valid.  

 
2) If an undated Proxy, which is otherwise complete in all respects, is lodged within the 

prescribed �me  limit, it should be considered valid.  
 

3) If a Company receives mul�ple Proxies for the same holdings of a Member, the proxy 
which is dated last  is considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without 
specific men�on of �me, all such  mul�ple Proxies should be treated as invalid.  
 

4) If a Proxy had been appointed for the original Mee�ng and such Mee�ng is adjourned, 
any Proxy given  for the adjourned Mee�ng revokes the Proxy given for the original 
Mee�ng.  
 

5) A Proxy later in date revokes any Proxy/Proxies dated prior to such Proxy. 
 

 17) A Proxy is valid un�l wri�en no�ce of revoca�on has been received by the company before the  
commencement of the Mee�ng or adjourned Mee�ng, as the case may be. A Proxy need not be 
informed  of the revoca�on of the Proxy issued by the Member. Even an undated le�er of 
revoca�on of Proxy should  be accepted. Unless the Ar�cles provide otherwise, a no�ce of 
revoca�on should be signed by the same  person who had signed the Proxy.  
 
1) Requisi�ons, if any, for inspec�on of Proxies should be received in wri�ng from a member 

at least three  days before the commencement of the Mee�ng.  
 

2) Proxies should be made available for inspec�on during the period beginning twenty-four 
hours before  the �me fixed for the commencement of the Mee�ng and ending with the 
conclusion of the Mee�ng. 
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ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

CIN: U74900TN2010PLC078047 
Registered Office: TL-7, 3rd  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road Egmore, Chennai, Tamil 

Nadu, India,  600008 
| Email: compliance@armourds.com | Website:  h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

th
15  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

thDay & Date: Tuesday, 30  September 2025 
Time: 01:00 P.M 
Venue: TL-7, 3rd  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, 
India, 600008  

Name of the Member(s): ___________________________________________  
Registered Address: _______________________________________________  
Folio No./DP ID & Client ID: ________________________________________  
No. of Shares held: ________________________________________________ 

thI/We hereby record my/our presence at the 15  Annual General Mee�ng of the Company 
thbeing held on  Tuesday, 30  September 2025 at 01:00 P.M at TL-7, 3rd  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, 

Mon�eth Road Egmore,  Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600008. 

Signature of the Member/Proxy: __________________________________ 

Note: 

th
1. Please refer to the instruc�ons printed under the Notes to the No�ce of the 15 Annual 

General  Mee�ng 
2. Member/Proxy wishing to a�end the mee�ng must bring this a�endance slip to the 

mee�ng and  hand it over at the entrance. 
3. Joint shareholders may obtain addi�onal slips on request. 
4. Proxy holders are requested to bring their iden�ty proof for verifica�on. 
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thROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF THE 15  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 

30, 2025  AT 1:00 P.M: 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

To,  
The Members,  
Armour Display Systems Limited  
(Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited)  
 

th
Your Director’s have great pleasure in presen�ng to you the 15  Annual Report on the affairs of the  

st
Company together with the Audited Accounts for the Financial year ended 31  March, 2025. 
 
 We would like to start by thanking all of our investors and stakeholders for their con�nued support and  
faith in us. In the years ahead, we aspire to build on our legacy and reach major milestones together.  
 
The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and opera�ons of Armour Display  
Systems Limited (Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited), along with the audited  
financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 along with the reports of the Auditors  
thereon. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS 
 
The Standalone financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is  
summarized below: 

                                                                                                                                      (Amount in Hundreds) 

Par�culars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

Revenue from Opera�ons 75,87,318.63 47,35,551.51 

Other Income 56,969.82 1,12,698.22 

Total Income 76,44,288.45 48,48,249.73 

Expenditure 

Opera�ng Expenses 35,65,952.30 22,71,465.55 
 

Employee Benefit Expenses 
 

5,35,955.89 4,82,581.94 

Finance Costs 
 

1,06,221.00 52,027.28 
 

Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense 
 

3,67,009.20 
 

1,45,155.41 

Other Expenses 
 

8,03,716.64 5,51,834.95 

Total Expenditure 
 

    53,78,855.03 
 

35,03,065.13 
 

"Profit before excep�onal and extraordinary items and tax" 22,65,433.42 
 

13,45,184.60 
 

Excep�onal items 
 

- 3,23,220.10 
 

"Profit before extraordinary items and tax" 22,65,433.42 
 

10,21,964.50 
 

Extraordinary Items 

 

- - 

Less: Extraordinary & Excep�onal Items 0 3,23,220.10

Profit before tax 22,65,433.42 
 

10,21,964.50 
 

Less: Current Tax 5,24,440.95 3,50,309.19 
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Less: Deferred Tax 83,764.15 
 

(7091.65 ) 
 

Less: Short/(Excess) Provision of Tax Earlier Year 25,352.63 13,800.06 

Profit /(Loss) 16,31,875.69 6,64,946.90 

 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
During the year under review, the Company achieved the revenue of the company of Rs. 75,87,318.63  (in 
hundreds) for the year ended March 31, 2025 as compared to Rs. 47,35,551.51 (in hundreds) during  the 
previous year ended March 31, 2024. The net Profit a�er Tax for the year ended March 31, 2025 Rs  
16,31,875.69 (in hundreds) as compared to Rs.664,946.90 (in hundreds) during the previous year ended  
March 31, 2024. 

Your Directors are commi�ed to achieve higher revenues and profits for its stakeholders in the coming. 
 
The above figures are extracted from the Financial Statements prepared in accordance with generally  
accepted accoun�ng Principles in India. The applicable mandatory Accoun�ng Standards as amended  
specified under sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)  
Rules, 2014 of India have been followed in prepara�on of these financial statements. 
  
DIVIDEND 
 
In view of the Company’s strategic focus on reinvestment for future growth and expansion, the Board of  
Directors has not recommended any dividend on the equity share capital for the financial year 2024–25. 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 

There was no amount outstanding to be an Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on 
Fund  during the FY 2024-2025. 
 
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 
 
Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 
 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 
Armour Display Systems Limited, incorporated in 2010, is a pioneer in implemen�ng the Public-Private  
Partnership (PPP) model with Indian Railways, offering advanced integrated audio-visual digital display  
systems across major railway sta�ons in India. These systems, comprising LED screens and public  
announcement units, deliver real-�me train informa�on while serving as an innova�ve Out-of-Home  
(OOH) adver�sing pla�orm, including the broadcast of TV commercials in high-traffic transit areas. 
Currently ac�ve at over 36 railway sta�ons, Armour provides adver�sers with excep�onal brand 
exposure,  strong brand recall, and cost-efficient adver�sing solu�ons in key ci�es na�onwide. A 
subsidiary of  Sapphire Media Limited—one of India’s leading media companies—Armour is commi�ed 
to transforming  the Digital Out-of-Home (DOOH) adver�sing landscape. 
 
Mission: To empower brands with cost-efficient, high-impact digital display solu�ons—fueling growth 
and  visibility in the evolving DOOH landscape. 
 
Vision: To be recognized as India’s foremost DOOH media partner—leveraging innova�on to redefine  
outdoor adver�sing in transit environments. 
 
CHANGE IN STATUS OF THE COMPANY 
 
Our Company was originally incorporated and registered as a private limited company on November 12,  
2010, under the Companies Act, 1956 in the name and style of “Armour Display Systems Private  
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Limited” bearing Corporate Iden�fica�on Number U74900TN2010PTC078047 issued by the Registrar of  
Companies, Chennai, Tamil Nadu. 
 
Subsequently, our Company was converted into public limited company pursuant to a shareholders’  
resolu�on passed at an Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on December 17, 2024, and consequently  
the name of our Company was changed to “Armour Display Systems Limited” bearing Corporate  
Iden�fica�on Number U74900TN2010PTC078047 and a fresh Cer�ficate of Incorpora�on dated January  
06, 2025 was issued by Registrar of Companies, Chennai, Tamil Nadu. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 
TO  WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT. 
 

No Material Changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company, have 

occurred  between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements 

relate and the  date of this Directors’ Report. 

SHARE CAPITAL  
  
During the year under review, the Company increased its Authorised Share Capital from ₹60,00,000  
(Rupees Sixty Lakhs only) to ₹25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Five Crores only), pursuant to the approval  
of the Members by way of a Special Resolu�on passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on  
January 07, 2025. 
 
Further, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was increased from ₹45,00,000 (Rupees Forty-Five  
Lakhs only), comprising 4,50,000 equity shares of ₹10 each, to ₹15,75,67,500 (Rupees Fi�een Crores  
Seventy-Five Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred only), comprising 1,57,56,750 equity shares of  
₹10 each. This increase was pursuant to the preferen�al allotment of 75,225 equity shares of ₹10 each,  
allo�ed in two tranches: 13,365 equity shares allo�ed following the Special Resolu�on passed by the  
Members at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on December 02, 2024; and 61,860 equity shares  
allo�ed pursuant to the Special Resolu�on passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on  
December 17, 2024. All shares were issued at a face value of ₹10 per share, carrying a premium of  
₹3,035 per share, aggrega�ng to an effec�ve issue price of ₹3,045 per share. 
 
Subsequently, the Members approved the allotment of Bonus Shares in the ra�o of 29:1 to the exis�ng  
shareholders, pursuant to which the Company allo�ed 1,52,31,525 Bonus Shares. A�er the allotment of  
Bonus Shares, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at ₹15,75,67,500 divided into  
1,57,56,750 equity shares of ₹10 each. 
 
SUBSIDARIES AND OTHER ASSOCIATES COMPANIES  
 
During the year under review, the company did not have subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture  
Company. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS 
 
Regular mee�ngs of the Board are held, inter-alia, to review and discuss the various businesses that  
require the approval of the Board. Addi�onal Board mee�ngs are convened, as and when required, to  
discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board mee�ngs are  
generally held at registered office of the Company. 
 
During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 20 (Twenty) �mes, viz  
 

Month Dates 

April 2024 - 

May 2024 08.05.2024, 22.05.2024, 24.05.2024 
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June 2024 29.06.2024 

July 2024 - 

August 2024 22.08.2024, 23.08.2024 

September 2024 20.09.2024 

October 2024 30.10.2024 

November 2024 01.11.2024, 05.11.2024, 15.11.2024, 27.11.2024, 30.11.2024 

December 2024 16.12.2024, 17.12.2024, 26.12.2024  

January 2025 06.01.2025, 27.01.2025, 31.01.2025 

February 2025 - 

March 2025 31.03.2025 

 
The gap between two consecu�ve mee�ngs was not more than one hundred and twenty days as 
provided  in sec�on 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT THE BOARD MEETINGS 
 
As per standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard on Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors (‘SS-1’) issued by the  
Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India (‘ICSI’), the a�endance of Directors at Board mee�ngs held  
during the financial year 2024-25 are as under: 
 

SI. 
No. 

Name of Director No. of Board Mee�ng a�ended/No. of 
Board Mee�ng conducted during the 
tenure 

1. Mr. Pankajkumar Srivastava 1/1 

2. Ms. Namratha Hirani 1/1 

3. Mr. Sahil Mangla 18/18 

4. Mr. Aditya Vashistha 18/18 

5. Mrs. Sonal Garg 5/5 

6. Mr. Shankar Aggarwal 3/3 

7. Mr. Sahil Agarwal 3/3 

 
During the year under review, there were several significant changes in the composi�on of the Board 
of  Directors of the Company (Please Refer next page). 
 
GENERAL MEETING  

During the year under review, the following General Mee�ng were held: 

SI. 
No. 

Type of Mee�ng Date of Mee�ng Total 
Number of 
members 
en�tled to 
date a�end 
mee�ng 

A�endance 

Number of 
members 
A�ended 

% of a�endance 

1. Extra-Ordinary 
General Mee�ng 

May 25, 2024 02 02 100 

3. Extra-Ordinary 
General Mee�ng 

December 17, 2024 30 30 100 

4. Extra-Ordinary 
General Mee�ng 

January 07, 2025 69 69 100 

5. Annual General 
Mee�ng  

September 30, 2024 02 02 100 

2. Extra-Ordinary 
General Mee�ng 

December 02, 2024 13 13 100 
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
The Board received a declara�on from all the Directors under Sec�on 164 and other applicable provisions, if 
any,  of the Companies Act, 2013 that none of the Directors of the Company is disqualified under the 
provisions of the  Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). 
 

Name of Director Director Iden�fica�on Designa�on 
Number (DIN) 

Mr. Pankajkumar Srivastava 02968531 Director 

Ms. Namratha Hirani 03147538 Director 

Mr. Sahil Mangla 06385907 Managing Director cum Chairman 

Mr. Aditya Vashistha 08580236 Whole-�me Director 

Mrs. Sonal Garg 08028120 Non-Execu�ve Director 

Mr. Shankar Aggarwal 02116442 Independent Director 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal 10776812 Independent Director 

 
Changes in the Board of Directors: 
 
During the year under review, there were several significant changes in the composi�on of the Board of  
Directors of the Company: 
 
Mr. Pankaj kumar Srivastava (DIN: 02968531), Director, resigned from the Board with effect from May 24, 
2024. 
 
Ms. Namratha Hirani (DIN: 03147538), Director, resigned from the Board with effect from May 22, 2024. 
The Board places on record its sincere apprecia�on for the invaluable contribu�ons and guidance provided by  
Mr. Srivastava and Ms. Hirani during their tenure. 
The following appointments were made during the year: 

Mr. Sahil Mangla (DIN: 06385907) was appointed as an Addi�onal Director by the Board through a resolu�on  
dated May 22, 2024, and was subsequently appointed as the Managing Director cum Chairman of the 
Company  pursuant to a Special Resolu�on passed by the Members at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng 
held on January  07, 2025. 
 
Mr. Aditya Vashistha (DIN: 08580236) was appointed as an Addi�onal Director by the Board through a 
resolu�on  dated May 22, 2024, and was subsequently appointed as a Whole-�me Director of the Company by 
way of a  Special Resolu�on passed by the Members at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on January 
07, 2025. 
 
Mr. Shankar Aggarwal (DIN: 02116442) was appointed as a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the 
Company  pursuant to a Resolu�on passed by the Members at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on 
January 07,  2025. 
 
Mr. Sahil Agarwal (DIN: 10776812) was appointed as a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company  
pursuant to a Resolu�on passed by the Members at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on January 07,  
2025. 
 
All appointments were made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
relevant rules thereunder. The Board believes that the newly appointed Directors bring with them a wealth of  
experience and will contribute significantly to the Company’s strategic growth and governance. 
 
DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Ar�cles of Associa�on and Sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Mr. 
Aditya Vashistha, Whole-�me Director of the Company, re�res by rota�on at the ensuing Annual General  
Mee�ng and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends her re-
appointment. 
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
In accordance with Sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review, following are 
the KMP  of the Company:- 
 

Sr. No. Name of Key Managerial Personnel Designa�on 

1. Daksha Agarwal Company Secretary  

2. Rajendar Kumar Arora* Chief Financial Officer 

3. Potnuru Santosh Kumar Chief Financial Officer 

4. Sahil Mangla Managing Director 

5. Aditya Vashistha Whole-�me Director 

 Appointments and Resigna�ons of Key Managerial Personnel 
 
During the year under review, Ms. Daksha Agarwal was appointed as the Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer of the Company by a resolu�on passed at the mee�ng of the Board of Directors held  
on January 06, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the  
Rules made thereunder. 
 
*Mr. Rajendra Kumar Arora was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company by a  
resolu�on passed at the Board mee�ng held on January 06, 2025, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on  
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules. However, Mr. Arora resigned from the posi�on  
of CFO with effect from April 19, 2024. 
 
Subsequent to the resigna�on of Mr. Rajendra Kumar Arora, Mr. Potnuru Santosh Kumar was appointed as  
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company by a resolu�on passed at the Board mee�ng held on April 24,  
2025. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
In terms of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company had two 
NonExecu�ve Independent Directors in line with the Companies Act, 2013. Further, both the Independent  
Directors of the Company had registered themselves in the Independent Directors’ Data Bank. 
 
The terms and condi�ons of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director 
are  incorporated on the website of the Company at   .h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com/  
 
MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  
 
A separate mee�ng of Independent Directors was held on March 31, 2025 without presence of Non-
Independent Directors Members of Management and employees of the Company as required under the  
Act and in Compliance with requirement under Schedule IV of the Act and as per requirements of Lis�ng  
Regula�ons and discussed ma�ers specified therein. 
 
The mee�ng was conducted to evaluate the:  
 
a. Performance of non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole;  
b. Quality, content and �meliness of the flow of informa�on between the Company management and 

the  Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform their du�es.  
 

However, the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, being a member of the  
management, a�ended the mee�ng only to facilitate convening and holding of the mee�ng. The mee�ng  
was a�ended by all the Independent Directors of the Company. 
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

The Company has received necessary declara�ons from each of the Independent Director of the 
Company  that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under sec�on 149(6) of the Act and 
complied with  the Code of Conduct as prescribed in the Schedule IV of the Act, as amended from �me to 
�me in respect  of their posi�on as an “Independent Director” of Armour Display Systems Limited. 
 
The Company has received requisite declara�on of independence from all the above-men�oned  
Independent Directors in terms of the Act, confirming that they con�nue to meet the criteria of  
independence. Further, in pursuance of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�ons of  
Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed their registra�on 
with  the Indian Ins�tute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) database. 
 
During the year under review the non-execu�ve independent directors of the company had no 
Pecuniary  rela�onship or transac�ons with the Company other than si�ng fees, commission, if any 
and  reimbursement of expenses incurred for the purpose of a�ending the mee�ngs of the board or  
commi�ees of the company. The Board took on record the declara�on and confirma�on submi�ed 
by the  independent directors regarding them mee�ng the prescribed criteria of independence. 
 
The Board is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite  
qualifica�ons, skills, experience (including proficiency) and exper�se and they hold highest standards 
of  integrity and are independent of the management.  

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES  

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors on their appointment as such on the Board with the 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibili�es in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 
Company operates, etc. through familiariza�on programme. The Company also conducts orienta�on 
programme upon induc�on of new Directors, as well as other ini�a�ves to update the Directors on a 
con�nuing basis. The familiariza�on programme for Independent Directors is disclosed on the 
Company’s website h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com. 
 
COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

Corporate Governance and Cons�tu�on of Commi�ees 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the  
Company has ensured compliance with the relevant corporate governance requirements. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has duly cons�tuted all  
mandatory commi�ees of the Board, namely the Audit Commi�ee, the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on  Commi�ee, and the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, by way of a Board 
Resolu�on passed on  January 27, 2025. The Board of the Company func�ons either directly or 
through these commi�ees,  which have been formed to oversee specific areas of opera�ons and to 
ensure effec�ve governance and  oversight. 

The Company has complied with the statutory requirements rela�ng to the appointment of  
Independent Directors, including a Woman Director on the Board, and con�nues to uphold the  
principles of good corporate governance in its opera�ons. 

During the year under review, Company has cons�tuted the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on &  
Remunera�on Commi�ee and Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee vide Board Resolu�on dated  
January 27, 2025: 
 
1. Audit Commi�ee 
2. Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
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1. Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee 
2. Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee 

 
Composi�on of Commi�ee, Mee�ng and A�endance of each Member at Mee�ngs 
 
Audit Commi�ee 
 
The Audit Commi�ee of the Company is cons�tuted in line with the provision of Sec�on 177 of the  
Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Commi�ee is cons�tuted in line to monitor and provide effec�ve  
supervision of the management’s financial repor�ng process, to ensure accurate and �mely 
disclosures,  with the highest level of transparency, integrity, and quality of Financial Repor�ng. 
  
The quorum for the mee�ng shall be one third of total members of the Audit Commi�ee or Two,  
whichever is higher, subject to minimum two Independent Director shall be present at the mee�ng. 
 
During the year under review, Audit Commi�ee of the Company met 01 (One) �me, viz. 31.03.2025.  
 
The composi�on of the Commi�ee and the details of mee�ngs a�ended by its members are given 
below: 

Name of Members Category Designa�on in Number of mee�ngs during the 
Commi�ee financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to 
a�end 

A�ended 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal Independent Chairperson 
Director 

01 01 01 

Mr. Shankar Aggarwal Independent Member 
Director 

01 01 01 

Ms. Sonal Garg Non-
Execu�ve  
Director 

Member 01 01 01 

 
Recommenda�ons of Audit Commi�ee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board 
of  Directors. 
 
Ms. Daksha Agarwal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company act as the secretary of 
the Commi�ee. 
 
2.Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee: 
 
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee of the Company is cons�tuted with the provision of  
Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee recommends  
the appointment of Directors and remunera�on of such Directors. 
 
The level and structure of appointment and remunera�on of all Key Managerial personnel and Senior  
Management Personnel of the Company, as per Remunera�on policy, is also overseen by this  
Commi�ee 
 
During the year under review, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee of the Company met 01 
(One)  �me, viz 31.03.2025.  
 
The composi�on of the Commi�ee and the details of mee�ngs a�ended by its members are given 
below: 

Name of Members         Category Designa�on in Number of mee�ngs during the financial year 2024-25 
Commi�ee 

Held Eligible to 
a�end 

A�ended 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal Independent 
Director 

Chairperson 01 01 01 
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Mr. Shankar 
Aggarwal 

Independent 
Director 

Member 01 01 01 

Ms. Sonal Garg Non- Execu�ve Member 
Director 

01 01 01 

Ms. Daksha Agarwal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company act as the secretary of 
the Commi�ee. 
 

Stakeholder’s Rela�onship Commi�ee 

The Company has a Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee of Directors in compliance with provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to look into the redressal of complaints of investors such as transfer or credit 
of shares, non-receipt of dividend/no�ces/annual reports, etc. 
 
During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Rela�onship Commi�ee of the Company met 01 �me, viz  
31.03.2025. 
 
The composi�on of the Commi�ee during the year and the details of mee�ngs a�ended by its 
members  are given below: 
 

Name of Members Category Designa�on in Number of mee�ngs during the financial year 2024-
Commi�ee 25 

Held Eligible to a�end A�ended 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal Independent Director Chairperson 01 01 01 

Mr. Shankar 
Aggarwal 

Independent Director Member 01 01 01 

Ms. Sonal Garg Non- Execu�ve 
Director 

Member 01 01 01 

Ms. Daksha Agarwal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company act as the secretary of 
the Commi�ee. 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee 
 
The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee of Directors in compliance with 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
  
During the year under review, Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee of the Company met 01 
�me,  viz31.03.2025. 
 
The composi�on of the Commi�ee during the year and the details of mee�ngs a�ended by its 
members  are given below: 
 

Name of Category Designa�on in Number of mee�ngs during the financial 
Members Commi�ee year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to a�end A�ended 

Mr. Sahil Mangla Managing Director Chairperson 01 01 01 

Mr. Aditya 
Vashistha 

Whole-�me Director Member 01 01 01 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal Independent Director Member 01 01 01 

 
POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
 
The Board, based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, has framed 
a  policy for the selec�on and appointment of Directors and Senior Management Personnel and their 
remunera�on. 
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The Company’s policy rela�ng to the Directors appointment, payment of remunera�on and discharge 
of  their du�es is available on the website of the Company at . h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND  
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS  

Performance evalua�on is becoming increasingly important for Board and Directors, and has benefits 
for individual Directors, Board and the Companies for which they work. The Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India has issued a Guidance Note on Board Evalua�on and pursuant to the provisions of the 
Act, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance evalua�on of its own performance, 
Board Commi�ees and individual Directors at their mee�ng. The Chairman of the Mee�ng/Company 
interacted with each Director individually, for evalua�on of performance of the individual Directors.  

The evalua�on of the performance of the Board as a whole and individual and of the Commi�ees was 
conducted by way of ques�onnaires. In a separate mee�ng of Independent Directors held on March 31, 
2025 performance of Non-Independent Directors and performance of the Board as a whole was 
evaluated. Further, they also evaluated the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into 
account the views of the Execu�ve Directors and Non-Execu�ve Directors. The performance of the 
Board was evaluated by the Board a�er seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of various 
criteria such as structure and diversity of the Board, competency of Directors, experience of Director, 
strategy and performance, secretarial support, evalua�on of risk, evalua�on of performance of the 
management and feedback, independence of the management from the Board etc. The performance of 
the Commi�ees was evaluated by the Board on the basis of criteria such as mandate and composi�on, 
effec�veness of the commi�ee, structure of the commi�ee and mee�ngs, independence of the 
commi�ee from the Board and contribu�on to decisions of the Board.  

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on 
the basis of the criteria such as qualifica�on, experience, knowledge and competency, fulfillment of 
func�ons, availability and a�endance, ini�a�ve, integrity, contribu�on and commitment etc., and the 
Independent Directors were addi�onally evaluated on the basis of independence, independent views 
and judgment etc.  

The performance of the Individual Directors was evaluated by the Board on the basis of criteria such as 
ethical standards, governance skills, professional obliga�ons, personal a�ributes etc. Further the 
evalua�on of Chairman of the Board, in addi�on to the above criteria for individual Directors, also 
included evalua�on based on effec�veness of leadership and ability to steer the mee�ngs, impar�ality, 
etc. The Chairman and other members of the Board discussed upon the performance evalua�on of 
every Director of the Company and concluded that they were sa�sfied with the overall performance of 
the Directors individually and that the Directors generally met their expecta�ons of performance.  

The summary of the feedback from the members were therea�er discussed in detail by the members. 
The respec�ve Director, who was being evaluated, did not par�cipate in the discussion on his/her 
performance evalua�on. The Directors expressed their sa�sfac�on with the evalua�on process. 

The Board of Directors has laid down the manner in which formal annual evalua�on of the performance 
of the board, Commi�ees and individual directors has to be made. 

The Company has in place a comprehensive and structured ques�onnaire for evalua�on of the Board 
and its Commi�ees, Board composi�on and its structure, effec�veness, func�oning and informa�on 
availability. This ques�onnaire also covers specific criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their 
individual capacity will be evaluated. The performance evalua�on of the Independent Directors was 
done by the en�re Board excluding the director being evaluated. 
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their  
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
 

a) In prepara�on of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable  

accoun�ng standards have been followed and that no material departures have been made  

from the same; 

b) The Directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made  

judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of  

the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of  

the Company for that year; 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate  

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for  

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other  

irregulari�es; 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 on 

going  concern basis. 

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 

and  that such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely; and 

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all  

applicable laws and that such systems were 
g) Adequate and opera�ng effec�vely. 
 
 
STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 
 
M/s. Anil Niar and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Membership No. 022450), were appointed as 
the  Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 9th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) and have 
completed their  term in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial 
year 2024–25. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, 
the  members of the Company at the 14th AGM held on 30th September 2024 appointed M/s. M S K G & 
Co.,  Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra�on No. 0008262N), as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a  term of five (5) consecu�ve years, i.e., from the conclusion of the 14th AGM �ll the 
conclusion of the 19th  AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2029. 

The remunera�on of the Statutory Auditors shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, as may be 
mutually  agreed upon between the Board and the Auditors. 
 
Further, pursuant to Sec�on 141 of the Act and relevant Rules prescribed there under, the Company has  
received cer�ficate from the Auditors along with peer review cer�ficate, that they are eligible to 
con�nue  with their appointment and that they are not disqualified in any manner whatsoever from 
con�nuing as  Statutory Auditors. 

st
The Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2025 
are  free from any qualifica�on, reserva�on, observa�on and adverse remark; further the notes on 
accounts  are self-explanatory. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the Financial Statements in this 
Annual Report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
The Statutory Auditors’ Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 is annexed to this Annual Report. The  
Statutory Audit Report does not contain any qualifica�on reserva�on or adverse remark or disclaimer  
made by Statutory Auditors. The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further comments. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 
 
Pursuant to Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, Armour Display Systems Limited appointed Ms. 
Divya Rani, Prac�cing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors to conduct the audit for the  
financial year 2024-25. This appointment was made in compliance with the applicable regulatory  
provisions and was duly approved by the Board. Ms. Divya Rani, have conducted the Secretarial Audit  
for the financial year 2024-25 and their report is a�ached as “Annexure I” to this Annual Report.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the relevant provisions of  
the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable laws, regula�ons, and guidelines.  
 
The report does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on, or adverse remark. Further, as per the  
provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant rules under the Companies  
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, secretarial audit is mandated  
for material unlisted subsidiaries.  
 
INTERNAL AUDITORS AND REPORT 
 
The process for appoin�ng the internal auditor was ini�ated and pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on  
138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has  
appointed M/s. M N M A & CO LLP, (Membership No.: 282894) as Internal Auditor for the financial 
year  2024-25. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN  
 
Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) read with Sec�on 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 
of  the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the year 
ending on  March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at  
h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
The par�culars of loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security provided and the purpose  
for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be u�lized as per the provisions of Sec�on 186  
of the Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed in the notes to account to the financial statements for the FY  
2024-25. 

DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY’S TRANSACTIONS 
 
All Related Party transac�ons that were entered into during the FY 2024-2025 were on arm’s length 
basis  and in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party 
transac�ons made  by the Company with related par�es which may have a poten�al conflict of interest 
with the company. 
All the related par�es transac�on are in compliance with the Accoun�ng Standards issued by ICAI and  
further details are men�oned in the notes of the Financial Statements. 
 
All Related party transac�ons are placed before the Audit Commi�ee for approval as per the Related 
Party  Transac�ons Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. The policy is also uploaded on the 
website  of the Company & can be accessed through the link h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com.  
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Since, all the related party transac�ons that were entered into during the financial year 2024-2025 
were  on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and there was no material 
related  party transac�on entered by the Company during the year as per Related Party Transac�ons 
Policy, details  are required to be provided in the Form AOC-2 prescribed under clause (h) of 
sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on  134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
Par�culars of contracts or  arrangements with related par�es referred to in sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 
188 in the prescribed form  (Form AOC-2) are a�ached as “Annexure-II”. 
 
The details of the transac�on with related par�es are provided in the notes to accompanying financial  
statements. 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO  
 
The informa�on on the conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on and foreign exchange earnings 
&  outgo as s�pulated under Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is  as follows:  
 

a. Conserva�on of Energy  i. The steps are taken or impact on the conserva�on of energy:  

Regular efforts are made to  conserve energy through various means such as the use of low 

energy consuming ligh�ng, etc.  

 

i. The steps taken by the Company for using alternate sources of energy: Since your Company 

is  not an energy-intensive unit, u�liza�on of alternate sources of energy may not be feasible.  

 

ii. Capital investment on energy conserva�on equipment: Nil  

 

b. Technology Absorp�on 

 Your Company is not engaged in manufacturing ac�vi�es, therefore there is no specific  

informa�on to be furnished in this regard. There was no expenditure incurred on Research and  

Development during the period under review. 

 

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo  

The foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given below:  
 
Total Foreign Exchange earned: Nil  Total Foreign Exchange 
used: Nil 

 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS  
 
During the year under review, there were no such significant and material orders passed by the  
regulators or courts or tribunals which could impact the going concern status and company’s 
opera�ons  in the future. However, the Company has received demand no�ce. For detailed 
informa�on on these  ma�ers, please refer to the "Con�ngent Liabili�es" sec�ons of Notes to 
Accounts. 
 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) 
 
During the year under review, neither any applica�on was made nor is any proceeding pending 
against the  Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
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PUBLIC DEPOSIT 
 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of  
Sec�on 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. Hence, the direc�ves issued by 
the  Reserve Bank of India & the Provision of Sec�on 73 to 76 of the Company Act, 2013 or any other 
relevant  provisions of the Act and the Rules there under are not applicable 
 

st
There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31  March, 2025. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
To meets the requirement under Sec�on 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 
has  adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy with a view to provide a vigilance mechanism 
for the  directors and employees of the Company to raise concern of any viola�ons of legal or 
regulatory  requirements, incorrectness or misinterpreta�on of any financial statements and reports 
etc. The purpose  of this Policy is to encourage the Company’s directors and employees who have 
concerns about suspected  misconduct, to come forward and express these concerns without fear of 
punishment or unfair treatment. 
 
Likewise, under this policy, we have prohibited discrimina�on, retalia�on or harassment of any kind  
against any employee who, based on the employee’s reasonable belief that such conduct or prac�ce 
have  occurred or are occurring, reports that informa�on or par�cipates in the said inves�ga�on. The 
Whistle  Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website at h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com 
 
No individual in the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee or its Chairman during 
the  FY 2024-25 
 
There were no instances of repor�ng under the Whistle Blower. 
 
The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at  
h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com .   
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD 
 
The maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Sec�on 148(1) of the  
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company as the company does not fall under any of the  
category prescribed under Sec�on 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the maintenance of the 
cost  records as specified by the Central Government under Sec�on 148(1) of the Act is not required 
and  accordingly, such accounts and records are not made and maintained. The Company has not 
appointed  any Cost Auditor during the year. 
 
REPORT ON FRAUDS U/S 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
 
There are no instances of Fraud/ Suspected Fraud commi�ed against the Company by the Officers or  
employees of the Company has been detected by the Auditor as required under Sec�on 143(12) of 
the  Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
According to Sec�on 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the term “Internal Financial Control (IFC)”  
means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient  
conduct of its business, The Company believes that internal control is a necessary prerequisite of  
Governance and that freedom should be exercised within a framework of checks and balances. The  
Company has a well-established internal control framework, which is designed to con�nuously assess 
the  adequacy, effec�veness and efficiency of financial and opera�onal controls. The financial control  
framework includes internal controls, delega�on of authority procedures, segrega�on of du�es, 
system  access controls and document filing and storage procedures.  
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The management is commi�ed to ensure an effec�ve internal control environment, commensurate 
with  the size, scale and complexity of the business, which provides an assurance on compliance with 
internal  policies, applicable laws, regula�ons and protec�on of resources and assets. The control 
system ensures  that the Company’s assets are safeguarded and protected and also takes care to see 
that revenue leakages  and losses to the Company are prevented and our income streams are 
protected. The control system  enables reliable financial repor�ng. The Audit Commi�ee reviews 
adherence to internal control systems  and internal audit reports. 
 
They have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing 
reliable  financial and opera�onal informa�on, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding 
assets from  unauthorized use, execu�ng transac�ons with proper authoriza�on and ensure 
compliance of corporate  policies. It has con�nued its efforts to align all its processes and controls 
with global best prac�ces. 
 CODE OF CONDUCT 

Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must for every employee, including Board Members 
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code is intended to serve as a basis for ethical 
decision-making in conduct of professional work. The Code of Conduct enjoins that each individual in 
the organiza�on must know and respect exis�ng laws, accept and provide appropriate professional 
views, and be upright in his conduct and observe corporate discipline. The du�es of Directors including 
du�es as an Independent Director as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 also form part of the Code of 
Conduct. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel affirm compliance with the Code of 
Conduct annually as “Annexure – III” 
 
DISCLOSURE ON SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
During the period under review, applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, rela�ng to 
‘Mee�ngs  of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Mee�ngs’, respec�vely, issued by The Ins�tute of 
Company  Secretaries of India have been duly followed by the Company and have devised proper 
systems to ensure  compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that 
such systems are adequate  and opera�ng effec�vely. 
 
PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES 

The informa�on required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of  
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed as  
“Annexure IV” and forms part of this Report. 
 
The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remunera�on drawn and the 
par�culars  of employees as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 
the Companies  (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in 
a separate annexure  forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent 
to the Members excluding  the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Sec�on 136 of the Act, the said 
annexure is opened for inspec�on in  electronic form. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of 
the same may write to the Company  Secretary. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 
Your Company’s CSR ini�a�ves align with the core purpose afore stated by priori�zing in areas of  
skilling, educa�on, and environment sustainability.  
 
The Annual Report on CSR ac�vi�es pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 134 and 135 of the Act read  
with rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and rule 9 of the  
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Directors’ Report as ‘Annexure V’. 
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 The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has cer�fied that the funds disbursed have been u�lized 
for  the purpose and in a manner approved by the Board for FY2025. 
 
 The CSR policy is hosted on the Company’s website at  h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com/policies/
 
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 
AND  CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS  
 
The management of the Company greatly benefits from the guidance, support, and mature advice of 
the  Board of Directors, who also serve on various commi�ees. The Board comprises directors with 
diverse  skills and rich experience, enhancing the quality of performance of its members. 
 
For the selec�on of any Director, the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee iden�fies individuals 
of  integrity who possess the relevant exper�se, experience, and leadership quali�es required for the  
posi�on. The Commi�ee ensures that candidates meet the necessary criteria regarding qualifica�ons,  
posi�ve a�ributes, independence, age, and other requirements as specified by the Act, Lis�ng  
Regula�ons, or other applicable laws.  
 
The objec�ve of this policy is to serve as a guiding framework for appoin�ng qualified individuals as  
directors on the Company’s Board of Directors ("Directors"), Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP"),  
recommending their remunera�on, and evalua�ng their performance. The Board of Directors, based 
on  the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, has developed a policy on 
the  appointment and remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and Senior Managerial  
Personnel. This includes criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes, independence of a  
Director, and other ma�ers mandated under Sec�on 178 (3) of the Act and the Lis�ng Regula�ons.  
 
The Board of Directors has established a policy that provides a framework for the remunera�on of  
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and Senior Management of the Company. This policy also 
outlines  the criteria for the selec�on and appointment of Board Members and emphasizes the 
importance of  Board diversity.  
 
The Company acknowledges the benefits and importance of having a diverse Board of Directors in 
terms  of skill sets and experience. The Company has an op�mal mix of execu�ve and non-execu�ve,  
independent directors, and a woman director. The relevant policy (ies) have been uploaded on the  
Company’s website and can be accessed through the link at h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com. 
 
POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
 
Your Company has always believed in providing safe and harassment free workplace for every 
individual  working in its premises through various interven�ons and prac�ces. The Company ensures 
that the work  environment at all its loca�ons is conducive to fair, safe and harmonious rela�ons 
between employees. It  strongly believes in upholding the dignity of all its employees, irrespec�ve of 
their gender or seniority. 
Discrimina�on and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited. 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 
 
The Company has adopted a policy for Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of  
Women at Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace  (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act). The Company has complied 
with the  provisions rela�ng to cons�tu�on of internal complaints commi�ee (ICC) under the POSH 
Act. All women  employees are covered under this policy. ICC has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding  sexual harassment. 
 
An Internal Compliant Commi�ee (ICC) is in place as per the requirements of the said Act to redress  
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,  
trainees) are covered under this policy. No case has been reported during the year under review 
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The details of the complaints received during the year under review were as 
follows: 
 No. of Complaints Pending at the Beginning of the Year 0 

No. of Complaints Received and Resolved during the year 0 

No. of Complaints Pending at the End of the Year 0 

 
WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY 
 
Your Company maintains a website h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com where detailed informa�on of the   
Company and specified details in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
GENERAL 
 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or repor�ng is required in respect of the following ma�ers as 
there  were no transac�ons on these items during the year under review: 
 
• Issue of equity shares with differen�al rights as to dividend, vo�ng or otherwise. 
• Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme. 

 
The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by  
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees. 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RECOGNITION  
 
The Board of Directors of Armour Display Systems Limited (Formerly Known as Armour Display 
Systems  Private Limited places on record its sincere apprecia�on for the con�nued trust, support, 
and  confidence extended by all our stakeholders—shareholders, customers, employees, partners, 
and  vendors—who have played an integral role in the Company’s progress and achievements during 
the  year. We would like to express our hear�elt gra�tude to our esteemed Board members for their  
strategic direc�on, foresight, and valuable counsel, which have helped the Company navigate both  
opportuni�es and challenges. Our sincere thanks also go to our employees across all levels whose  
dedica�on, resilience, and commitment remain the driving force behind our success and innova�on.  
 
We acknowledge and appreciate the con�nued coopera�on and guidance received from regulatory  
authori�es, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, bankers, financial ins�tu�ons, and our professional  
advisors, whose support has been vital in advancing our strategic ini�a�ves and ensuring compliance. 
Looking ahead, we reaffirm our commitment to crea�ng sustainable value, fostering innova�on, and  
contribu�ng posi�vely to all stakeholders as we con�nue to pursue our long-term vision of excellence  
and responsible growth. 
 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited (Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 

 

 

Sd/-                                    Sd/- 
Sahil Mangla           Aditya Vashistha 
Managing Director      Whole-Time Director  
DIN: 06385907   DIN: 08580236 

 
Date: September 05, 2025 
Place: Chennai 
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Annexure-I 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment  

and Remunera�on Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 

The Members, 

Armour Display Systems Limited 
rdTL-7, 3  Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road   

Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600008

I, Divya Rani, Proprietor of Divya Rani , Prac�sing Company Secretaries, have conducted the  

Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good  

corporate prac�ces by Armour Display Systems Limited (CIN- U74900TN2010PLC078047)  

(hereina�er called the “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided  

me a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing  

my opinion thereon.  

 

A. Based on my verifica�on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed  

and other records maintained by the Company and also the informa�on provided by the  

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial  

audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the  

financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions  

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:  

 

B. I have examined the books, papers, minute’s books, forms and returns filed and other records  

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the  

provisions of:  

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (as amended)(‘the Act’) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made there under  

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External  

Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(v) The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board  of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure  

Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit  

period); 

b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure  

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit  

period); 

c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and  

Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
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a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons,  

2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat  

Equity) Regula�ons, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non-Conver�ble  Securi�es) 

Regula�ons, 2021; - (Not applicable to the Company during the audit  period); 

d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer  

Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not  

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons,  2021; - 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018; -(Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Par�cipants) Regula�ons,  

2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

h) The major provisions and requirements have also been complied (to the extent  applicable) 

with as prescribed under all applicable Labour laws :  
i) The Factories Act, 1948,  
ii) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936,  
iii) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948,  
iv) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,  
v) The Employees Compensa�on Act, 1923,  
vi) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,  

vii) The Environment Protec�on Act, 1986.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

A. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards (‘SS’) with regard to the mee�ngs of the Board of Directors (SS-1)  

and General Mee�ngs (SS-2) issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii) The Company is not listed with Stock Exchange; therefore, the lis�ng Regula�ons are  

not applicable to the Company. 

 

B. During the Period under review, the company has generally complied with the provisions of 

the  Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men�oned above subject to the 

following  observa�ons: 

 

During the financial year 2023–24, the Company was required to incur CSR expenditure  
pertaining to the financial year 2022–23, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on  
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the said amount could not be spent during  
the financial year 2023–24. Subsequently, the Company has u�lized the unspent CSR  
amount of ₹12,10,823 (Rupees Twelve Lakh Ten Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty-Three  
only) and made a dona�on to a registered public welfare organiza�on, Jan Jagra�  
Sevarth Sansthan, on 30th September 2024, i.e., during the financial year 2024–25. 

Further, during the financial year 2024–25, the Company was obligated to incur CSR  

expenditure pertaining to the financial year 2023–24, as per Sec�on 135 of the  

Companies Act, 2013. While the required amount of ₹21,58,346 (Rupees Twenty-One  

Lakh Fi�y-Eight Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Six only) was not spent during the  

financial year, the Company subsequently donated ₹23,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Three 
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Lakh only) — which is in excess of its statutory obliga�on — to a registered public  

welfare organiza�on, Ashirvad Founda�on, on 11th August 2025, i.e., before the signing  

of this report. 

 

I further report that, having regards to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on  

examina�on of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the  

Company has complied with the provisions of Labour Laws, Environmental Laws and other related  

Industry specific laws to the extent applicable to the Company.  

During the audit period the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,  

Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men�oned above. 

 

I further report that 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company was duly cons�tuted with the proper balance of Execu�ve  
Director(s), Non-Execu�ve Directors, and Independent Directors as at the end of the Review Period. 
The changes in the composi�on of the Board of Directors that took place during the Review Period  
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act, and the changes that took place in  the 
composi�on are as follows: 

1. Ms. Namratha Hirani (DIN: 03147538) resigned from the posi�on of Director of the Company   
with effect from May 22, 2024. 
 

2. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Srivastava (DIN: 02968531) resigned from the posi�on of Director of the  
Company with effect from May 24, 2024. 
 

1. Mr. Sahil Mangla (DIN: 06385907) was appointed as an Addi�onal Director of the Company  
pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 by way of a Board  
Resolu�on passed at the mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on May 22, 2024. 
Subsequently,  he was appointed as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company by 
passing a Special  Resolu�on at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng of the members held on 
January 07, 2025, in  compliance with the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, and 203 read 
with Schedule V and  other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder. 
 

2. Mr. Aaditya Vashistha (DIN: 08580236) was appointed as an Addi�onal Director of the 
Company  pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 through a 
resolu�on  passed by the Board of Directors at its mee�ng held on May 22, 2024. Subsequently, 
he was  appointed as Whole-�me Director of the Company by passing a Special Resolu�on at 
the ExtraOrdinary General Mee�ng of the members held on January 07, 2025, in accordance 
with the  provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, and 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable  provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 
 

3. Mrs. Sonal Garg (DIN: 08028120) was appointed as a Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company 
by  passing an Ordinary Resolu�on at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng of the members held 
on  December 17, 2024, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152 and other applicable  
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
 

4. Mr. Shankar Aggarwal (DIN: 02116442) was appointed as a Non-Execu�ve Independent 
Director  of the Company by passing a Special Resolu�on at the Extra-Ordinary General 
Mee�ng of the  members held on January 07, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of 
Sec�ons 149(10) and  152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the  Rules made thereunder. 
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1. Mr. Sahil Agarwal (DIN: 10776812) was appointed as a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of  
the Company by passing a Special Resolu�on at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng of the  
members held on January 07, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�ons 149(10) and  
152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the  
Rules made thereunder. 
 

Adequate no�ce has been given to all Directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs/Commi�ee  

Mee�ngs during the financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent  

generally in advance to all the Directors and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further  

informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful  

par�cipa�on at the mee�ng. On inspec�on of the minutes as captured and recorded it was  

ascertained that all the decisions of the Board and Commi�ees’ Mee�ngs were unanimous and  

there were no dissen�ng views.   

 

I further report that, based on the review of the compliance reports and the cer�ficates of the  

Company Execu�ve and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion  

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and  

opera�ons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,  

regula�ons and guidelines. The Company is generally regular in filing of e-forms with the Registrar  

of Companies within the �me prescribed under the Act. 

 
I further report that during the Review Period, the following events occurred in the Company having  
a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules,  
regula�ons, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 
 
1. During the audit period, there was a change in the shareholding pa�ern and promoter 

structure  of the Company. Ms. Namrata Hirani, holding 2,25,000 equity shares, and Mr. Pankaj 
Kumar  Srivastava, also holding 2,25,000 equity shares, transferred their en�re shareholding to 
Sapphire Media Limited and Mr. Sahil Mangla. Consequently, there was a change in the  
promoters of the Company. 
 

1. The Board of Directors, declared an interim for the FY 23-24 of ₹1.80 crore each to Mr. Pankaj  
Kumar Srivastava and Ms. Namrata Hirani. This interim dividend pertains to the financial year  
2023–24 and has been declared and paid in compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 123 of  
the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant applicable rules. 

2. During the repor�ng period, the Company changed its Corporate Office and the address at  
which the books of account are maintained from TL-7, 3rd Floor, Alsa Mall, No. 4, Mon�eth  
Road, Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu – 600008 to A-154A, Second Floor, Sector 63, Noida,  
Gautam Buddha Nagar, U�ar Pradesh – 201301.The change in the place of maintenance of  
books of account has been duly approved by the Board of Directors and in�mated to the  
Registrar of Companies in Form AOC-5 as required under Sec�on 128 of the Companies Act,  
2013. 
 

4. During the repor�ng period, the Company was converted from a ‘Private Limited’ Company to a  
‘Public Limited’ Company pursuant to the approval of the members by passing a Special  Resolu�on 
at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on December 17, 2024. In line with the  conversion, the 
Company amended the Name Clause of its Memorandum of Associa�on 
(MOA) and the name in its Ar�cles of Associa�on (AOA) to reflect the change from Armour  Display 
Systems Private Limited to Armour Display Systems Limited. The necessary filings were  made with 
the Registrar of Companies, and a fresh Cer�ficate of Incorpora�on consequent to 
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the conversion and name change was issued by the Registrar of Companies on January 6, 2025,  
in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 14 and other applicable provisions of the  
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. During the repor�ng period, the Company increased its Authorised Share Capital from  
₹60,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Lakhs) to ₹25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Five Crores) pursuant to the  
approval of members by passing a Special Resolu�on at the Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng  held 
on January 07, 2025. In connec�on with the increase, the Company also amended the  Capital 
Clause of its Memorandum of Associa�on (MOA) in accordance with the provisions of  Sec�on 61 
read with Sec�on 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The necessary forms were filed with the Registrar of Companies within the prescribed �me. 
 

6. During the repor�ng period, the paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from  
₹45,00,000 (divided into 4,50,000 equity shares of ₹10 each) to ₹15,75,67,500 (divided into  
1,57,56,750 equity shares of ₹10 each). The increase in paid-up share capital was effected  through 
the issue and allotment of equity shares in the following manner: 

Issuance and allotment of 75,225 equity shares of ₹10 each; 
Issuance and allotment of 1,52,31,525 equity shares of ₹10 each as bonus shares. 
 
The allotments were made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,  
2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. Necessary filings were made with the Registrar of  
Companies within the prescribed �melines. 
 

1. Ms. Daksha Agarwal was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of 
the  Company by passing a resolu�on at the mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on 
January 06,  2025, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the  Rules made thereunder. 
 

2. Mr. Rajendra Kumar Arora was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the 
Company  by passing a resolu�on at the mee�ng of the Board of Directors held on January 
06, 2025,  pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
applicable Rules  made thereunder. 
 

Note: This report is to be read with our le�er of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” 
and forms an integral part of this report. 

For Divya Rani  
Company Secretary

Sd/- 
Mem. No.: 6484  
C P No.:  26462   

    Peer Review No. 6693/2025                                                                                                                                 
UDIN:   A064841G001121402 

 
 
 
Date:-30.08.2025  
Place:- Faridabad 
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Annexure-A 
Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report 

 

To 

The Members 

Armour Display Systems Limited 

TL-7, 3rd Floor, Alsa Mall, No.4, Mon�eth Road   Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 

600008 

 
Our Report of even date is to be read along with this le�er: 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the  

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based  on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit prac�ces and process as were appropriate to obtain  

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the Secretarial records. The 

verifica�on  was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial  records. I believe that the process and prac�ces, we followed provide a 

reasonable  basis of my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books  of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where-ever required, I have obtained the Management representa�on about the  

Compliance of laws, rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,  

regula�ons, standards is the responsibility of management. My examina�on was  

limited to the verifica�on of procedure on test check basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the  

Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has  

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

Sd/-
For Divya Rani  

 Company Secretary  
Mem. No.: 6484  C P No.:  26462   

    Peer Review No. 6693/2025                                                                                                                                     
UDIN: A064841G001121402 

 
 
 
Date:-30.08.2025  
Place:- Faridabad 
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ANNEXURE II 
 

AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies  

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)  
 

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related  
par�es referred to in sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s  
length transac�ons under third proviso thereto.  
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at arm’s length basis: 

 
Sl. No Name(s) of Nature of Dura�on Salient Jus�ficat date(s) Amount Date on which 

the related contracts/ of the terms of the ion for of paid as the special 
party and arrangements contracts/ contracts or entering approval advances resolu�on 
nature of / transac�ons arrangeme arrangement into by the , if any was passed in 
rela�onship nts s or such Board general 

/transac� transac�ons contract mee�ng as 
ons including the s or required 

value, if any arrange under first 
ments or provision to 
transac� sec�on 188 
ons 

(a) (b) (c)  (d) (e.)  (f) (g) (h) 

1 Sapphire  
media  
Limited(  
Debtors) 

Inter  
Company  
Transac�ons 

12,25,182.84  24-05-
2024 

2 Amor Group 
Adver�sing Company 
Media pvt 
ltd (debtors) 

1,32,334,67 24-05-
2024 

3 Rajendra Remunera�on  
Kumar Arora 
(CFO) 

12,000.00 24-05-
2024 

4 Pankaj  
Kumar  
Srivastava 

Remunera�on     2,574.00 24-05-
2024 

5 Namrata 
Hirani  

Remunera�on    2,574.00 
    

24-05-
2024 

6 SapphireMe 
dia Limited  
(ICD) 

  26,520.54 24-05-
2024 

7 
 

Amor  
Adver�sing  
Media pvt  
Ltd (Sale  
Including  
GST) 

 1,34,616.30 20-09-
2024 

8 Sahil Mangla   
(advance Re  
Paid) 

   250.00 24-05-
2024 

9 Rajendra 
Kumar Arora  
(CFO)  
(Advance  
Repaid) 

  
  24,969.00 

24-05-
2024 

10 Sahil Mangla   
(advance  
received) 

 
  250.00 

NA 
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11 

Rajendra 
Kumar Arora  
(CFO)  
(Advance  
Received 

 
    
  24,969.00 

NA 

 
 
12 
 
 

Jan Bhawna  
Times  
Private  
Limited   
(advance  
received  
back) 

2,18,820.96 NA 

 
 
13 

Amor 
Adver�sing  
Media Pvt 
ltd ( advance  
received  
back) 

97,937.48 NA 

 
 
14 

Sapphire  
Media  
Limited  
(advanced  
received  
back) 

4,47,980.24 NA 

 
15 

Jan Bhawna  
Times  
Private  
Limited   
(Business  
Advance  
given) 

2,18,820.96 24-05-
2024 

16 Amor 
Adver�sing  
Media Pvt  
ltd (Business  
advance  
given) 

97,937.48 24-05-
2024 

 
17 
 
 
 

Sapphire  
media  
Limited 

4,47,980.24 24-05-
2024 

 
 
 
18 
 

Sapphire 
Media  
Limited (ICD)  
Loan  
Received  
Back 

10,00,000.00  NA 

 
19 

Sapphire 
Media  
Limited (ICD)  
Loan Given 

10,00,000.00  24-05-
2024 

 
 
20 
 

Sanya Hirani 
(consultancy 
Charges 

350.00 24-05-
2024 

 
 
21 
 

Anil K Hirani 
(Consultancy 
charge) 

27,989.86 24-05-
2024 

Rajendra 12,000.00 24-05-
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22 Kumar arora 
(CFO) 

2024 

 
23 

Pankaj  
Kumar  
Srivastava  
(mangerial  
remunera�o 
n) 

1,34,210.14 24-05-
2024 

 
25 

Namratha  
Hirani(Mang 
erial  
reumnera�o 
n) 

40,789.57 24-05-
2024 

 
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transac�ons at arm’s length 

basis: 
 Sr. Name(s) of the Nature of contracts/ Amount (in date(s) of 

No related party and arrangements/ Lakhs) approval by 
nature of transac�ons the Board 
rela�onship 

Amount paid as 
advances, if any 

(a)                        (b)               (c)          (d)                      (e) 

1. Sahil Mangla  
(Managing  
Director)  
 

Remunera�on  
06.01.2025 

Nil 

2. Aditya Vashistha  
(Whole Time  
Director)  

Remunera�on 06.01.2025 Nil 

3. Sonal Garg  
Non-Execu�ve  
(Director) 

Remunera�on 17.12.2024 Nil 

 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited  

(Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

  
Sd/- 
Sahil Mangla  
Managing Director 

DIN: 06385907 
 
Date: September 05, 2025  
Place: Chennai 
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Annexure-III 
CHAIRMAN’S DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 
To,  
 
The Members  
Armour Display Systems Limited  
(Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 
 
 
This is to cer�fy that the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (the Code) for all Board Members 
and  Senior Management Personnel of the Company and a copy of the Code is put on the website of the 

Company viz . h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com
 
It is further confirmed that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed  
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel, as  
approved by the Board, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. 
 
 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited  

(Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

  

 

 
Sd/- 
Sahil Mangla  
Managing Director 

DIN: 06385907 
 
Date: September 05, 2025  
Place: Chennai 
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Annexure-IV 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remunera�on and other details as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the  
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under; 
 
A. Informa�on as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial  

Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 

a) The ra�o of remunera�on of each director to the median remunera�on of employees for the  
Financial Year and the Percentage increase in remunera�on of each director, Chief Financial  
Officer, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year: 
 

SI. Name of  Designa�on Nature of Ra�o against % Increase / (Decrease) 
No. Director/ Payment Remunera�on of each in Remunera�on for 

KMPs Director to median Financial Year 2023-
remunera�on of 2024 
employees 

a) The percentage increase in the median remunera�on of employees in the financial year:  
The median remunera�on of the employees in current financial year as on March 31, 2025  
increased by 5.00% over the previous financial year. The median remunera�on of 
employees  increased by 10.00% due to increase in salary expenses / employees in the 
financial year 202425 as compared to previous year. 
 

b) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:  

1. Mr. Sahil 
Mangla 

Managing Director Remunera�on 0 
 

0 
 

2. Mr. Aditya 
Vashistha 

Whole-�me 
Director 

Remunera�on 0 0 

3. Mrs. Sonal 
Garg 

Non-Execu�ve 
Director  

Si�ng Fees 0 0 

4. Mr. Shankar 
Aggarwal 

Non-Execu�ve  
Independent  
Director 

Si�ng Fees 0 0 

5, Mr. Shankar 
Agarwal 

Non-Execu�ve  
Independent  
Director 

Si�ng Fees 0 0 

6. Mr. R.K. Arora Chief Financial 
( Resigned on Officer (CFO) 

th19  April 2025 

Remunera�on 0.53 0 

7. Mr. P. Santosh Chief Financial 
Kumar Officer (CFO) 
(appointed on  

th
24  April,  
2025) 

Remunera�on  0.035 11 % 

8. Ms. Daksha Company Remunera�on 
Agarwal( Secretary & 
Appointed on Compliance Officer 
January 06, 
2025) 

0.01 0 
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As on March 31, 2025, there are 90 permanent employees on rolls of the Company. 
 

d) Average percen�le increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the  
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase  
in the managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and point out if there are any  
excep�onal circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera�on:  

The Average salary of employees was increased by 10.00%. Although number of employees  
increased in the current financial year 2024-25, but due to increase in average pay scale per  
employee in the current financial year 2024-25 as compared to previous financial year 2023-
24, the average salary of employees increased by 10.00%. Further, there is no increase in the  
managerial remunera�on of Execu�ve Directors of the Company.

a) The Company affirms that the remunera�on is as per remunera�on policy of the 
Company. 
 

b) During the financial year, there was no employee employed throughout the financial year 
or  part of the financial year who was in receipt of remunera�on in the aggregate of not 
less than  Rs. 22.00 Lakhs per month or Rs. 2.67 Crore per financial year. 
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Annexure-V 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
[Pursuant to clause (o) of Sub-Sec�on 3 of Sec�on 134 of the Act, Sec�on 135 read with and Companies  
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended] 
 
1. Brief Outline on the CSR Policy of the Company: 

 

The purpose of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company is to devise an  
appropriate strategy and focus for its CSR ini�a�ves and lay down the broad principles on the  
basis of which it will fulfill its CSR objec�ves. The main objec�ve of CSR Policy of the Company is  
to demonstrate commitment to the common good through responsible business prac�ces and  
good governance; set appropriate standards of quality in the delivery of services in the social  
sector by crea�ng robust processes and replicable models; to operate its business in an  
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the interests  
of all its stakeholders. 

 
1. Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee: 

SI. No. Name of 

Members 

Designa�on Number of 

Mee�ngs of CSR 

Commi�ee held 

during the year 

Number of 

Mee�ngs 

of CSR 

Commi�ee 

a�end during the 

year 

1. Sahil Mangla Chairman 1 1 

2. Aditya Vashistha Member 1 1 

3. Sahil Agarwal Member 1 1 

 
3. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
4. 

 
 
5.  

Provide the web-link where Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee, CSR Policy by the Board are  
disclosed on the website of the Company: 

The Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee, Company’s CSR Policy and CSR projects are available on the  
website of the Company 

Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee: h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com/composi�on-of-board-and-
itscommi�ees. 

Company’s CSR Policy:  h�ps://armourdigitalooh.com/policies.
 

Provide the execu�on summery alongwith web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects  
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: NA 

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-sec�on 5 of Sec�on 135: Rs.   9,79,14,141/- 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-sec�on 5 of Sec�on 135: Rs. 

19,68,283/-  
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or ac�vi�es of the previous financial  
years: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
(d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 19,68,283/- 
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1. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

SI. 
No. 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
ac�vi�es in 
Schedule VII 
to the Act 

Loc
al 
Are
a 
(Ye
s/N
o) 

Loca�on of the 
Project 

Pro
jec
t 
Du
ra�
on 

Amount 
Allocate
d for the 
Project 
(In Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent in 
the 
Current 
Financial 
Year (In 
Rs.) 

Amo
unt 
trans
ferre
d to 
unsp
ent 
CSR 
acco
unt 
for 
the 
proje
ct as 
per 
Sec�
on 
135(
6) 
(In 
Rs.) 

Mode 
of 
imple
menta
�on 
Direct 
(Yes 
/No)  

Mode Of 
Implementa�on 
Through 
Implemen�ng 
Agency 

State District Name CSR 
Regis
tra�
on 

1. 

 
(a) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 

SI. 
No 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from the 
list of 
ac�vi�es in 
Schedule VII 
to the Act 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/No) 

Loca�on of the Project Amoun
t spent 
for the 
Project 
(in Rs.)  

Mode of 
implementa
�on – Direct 
(Yes /No) 

Mode of implementa�on 
- Through implemen�ng 
agency 

State District Name CSR 
Registra�on 
number 

1. Ashirvad Educa�on to No 
Founda� Poor Children 
on 

Gujarat Ahmedabad 23,00,0
00/- 

No NA CSR00051269 

 
(a) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads: 
(b) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: 
(c) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2024-25 [(a)+(b)+© 
(d) Details of CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 
2024-25 (In 
Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (In Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
Sec�on 135(6) 

Amount Transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second provision to Sec�on 135(5) 

    Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Name of 
Fund 

     Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Rs 23,00,000/- 0 0 - - - 
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Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 
2023-2024 (In 
Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (In Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
Sec�on 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second provision to Sec�on 
135 (5) 

Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Name of Fund Amount Date of 
Transfer 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

SI. No. Par�cular         Amount (In Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 
sec�on 135(5) 

Rs. 19,68,283/- 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs 23,00,000/- 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]          Rs 3,31,717/- 

The CSR Commi�ee  
recommended &  
Board has approved  

st 
31  March, 2025  as  
CSR Expenditure for  
FY 2024-25 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
ac�vi�es of the previous Financial Years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

- 

 
7. 
 

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

SI. 
No. 

Precedin
g 
Financial 
Year 

Amount 
Transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Account 
under 
Sec�on 
135(6) (In 
Rs.) 

Balance Amount 
in Unspent CSR 
Account under 
Sub Sec�on (6) of 
Sec�on 135  
(In Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent in 
the 
Repor�ng 
Financial 
Year (In 
Rs.) 

Amount 
Transferred 
to any fund 
specified 
under 
Schedule VII 
as per Sec�on 
135(6) If Any 

Amount 
Remaining 
to be 
Spent in 
Succeedin
g Financial 
Years (In 
Rs.) 

Deficiency, 
If Any 

1 2021-22 - - - - - - - 

2 2022-23 - - - - - - - 

3 2023-24 - - - - - 
12,10,821 

- 

 
8. 

 

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social  
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:  
Furnish the details rela�ng to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social  
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
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SI. 
No. 

Short 
par�culars 
of the 
property or 
Assets(s) 

Pin code 
of the 
property 
or 
asset(s) 

Date of 
Crea�on 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
Spent 

Details of en�ty/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

CSR 
Registra�on 
Number, If 
Applicable 

Name Registered 
Address 

 
1. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net 

profit  as per sec�on 135(5):  
 

For and on behalf of the board 

Armour Display Systems Limited (Formerly Known as Armour Display Systems Private Limited) 

 

Sd/-                                                                                                                                              Sd/- 

Sahil Mangla                                                                                                     Aditya Vashistha                                                                                                                                                                   

Managing Director                                                                                       Whole-Time Diretor  

DIN: 06385907                                                                                                     DIN: 08580236 

 
thDate: September 05  2025 

Place: Chennai
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Ashirvad 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ REPORT
To the Members of ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED [formerly ARMOUR 
st DISPLAY SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED]  (“he Company”, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 

2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accoun�ng policies and other 
explanatory informa�on (herein a�er referred to as the “inancial statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“he Act” in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, its Profit, and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under Sec�on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’ Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Other Ma�ers
Vide share purchase agreement dated 31st March 2024, the exis�ng shareholders of the Company have 
sold/transferred their 100% shareholdings into the Company to Sapphire Media Ltd. (PAN: ABJCS6188E); 
Bonus shares have been allo�ed by capitalisa�on of free reserves; new shares have been allo�ed on 
preferen�al basis; and the name of ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED has been changed to 
Armour Display Systems Limited on sixth day of January two thousand twenty five (06.01.2025). For 

st
details refer note nos. 23 to 26 of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2025.

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’ Report Thereon
The Company’ Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on 
comprises the informa�on included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’ report thereon.  The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us a�er the date 
of this Auditors’Report.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’ management and Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoun�ng Standards (AS) specified 
under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; 
selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’ ability to 
con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accoun�ng unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’ financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’ Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:
 
· Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control. 

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
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condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to con�nue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our 
auditor’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’ report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to 
cease to con�nue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and 
other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the Emphasis of Ma�er, if any.

Report on Other Legal and the Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“he Order”, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 
A”a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examina�on of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

ste) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31  March, 2025 
st

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2025 
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from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B” Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness 
of the Company’ internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
remunera�on paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013. This is to be read with Note no. 23 of the 

staudited financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2025; as sec�on 197 of the Act applies to 
public company only.

h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its financial 
statements –Refer Note 33 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognize a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable 
law or Accoun�ng Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contract. The Company did not have any deriva�ve contracts as at March 31, 2025;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund by the Company;

iv. 
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 

41(d) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
en�ty, including foreign en�ty (“ntermediaries”, with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“l�mate Beneficiaries” or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 
41(e) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons 
or en�ty including foreign en�ty (“unding Par�es”, with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“l�mate Beneficiaries” or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the 
representa�ons under sub-clause, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

i. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly the provisions of 
sec�on 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. However, dividend declared for FY 2023-
24 as stated Note 3 to the Financial Statements and paid by the Company during the year is in 
compliance with Sec�on 123 of the Act.
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ii. Based on our examina�on which included test checks, the Company has used accoun�ng 
so�ware for maintaining its books of accounts which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded 
in the said so�ware. Further, we have not come across any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tempered with.

For MSKG &CO
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Regn. No.:008262N)

SD/
(CA. KAVISH GROVER)
Partner
M.No. 532617
UDIN: 25532617BMLILB9676
Place: KAITHAL
Date: 27-08-2025
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on 
of our report to the members of ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including 
quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of Intangible 
assets.

(b) All Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at a 
regular interval of �me (normally once a year). No material discrepancies were no�ced on 
such verifica�on.

(c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company does not own any immovable 
proper�es (other than immovable proper�es where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreement are duly executed in favor of the lessee). Accordingly, repor�ng under clause (i) 
(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right to use 
assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause (i) 
(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, No proceedings have been ini�ated during the 
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 
rules made thereunder, and therefore the ques�on of our commen�ng on whether the 
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financial statements 
does not arise.

(ii) (a) The company does not have any inventory, hence repor�ng under clause (ii) (a) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.
(b) During the year, the Company has been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 
5 Crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The terms of 
sanc�on s�pulate filing of monthly returns or statements with such banks, and such returns 
or statements filed by the company with such banks are generally in agreement with the 
books of account of the company as stated in note no. 38(c) of the financial statements.

(iii) 

(a) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee and security and 
granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other par�es during the year; other than Rs. 
1,000,000.00 hundreds given as loan to Sapphire Media Limited (Holding Company) and 
received back during the year as s�pulated _ refer note 35(G) of the financial statements. 
Therefore, further repor�ng under clause 3(iii), (iii) (a), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loan given, the terms and condi�ons under which such loan 
was given are not prejudicial to the Company’ interest.

(c) In respect of loans and advances granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been s�pulated and repayment or receipts are regular.
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(d) In respect of loans and advances granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) There are no loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year and has 
been renewed and extended. Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 
any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The Companies has complied with the provisions of sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provided, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits. Therefore, the repor�ng of clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
sub sec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business ac�vi�es carried 
out by the Company. Hence, repor�ng under clause(vi) of the order is not applicable to the 
company.

(vii) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident 
fund, employees’state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to appropriate authority have 
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company. According to the 
informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues 
were in arrears, as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there are no dues of Goods and Services 
Tax, provident fund, employees’state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute except as per details below: 
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(viii) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there were no such transac�ons rela�ng to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) 

(a) The Company has not default in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on 
or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were 
obtained.

(d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been u�lised for long-
term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and procedures performed by 
us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies during the year. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and procedures performed by 
us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies during the year. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferen�al allotment of shares, as stated in 
note no. 25 of the financial statements, and the requirements of sec�on 42 and sec�on 62, 
as applicable, of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised 
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

STATUTE NATURE OF 
DUES

FORUM WHERE 
DISPUTE IS 
PENDING

PERIOD TO 
WHICH THE 
AMOUNT 

REATES

AMOUNT INVOLVED 
(IN INR HUNDREDS)

Service Tax Service Tax 
Demand

CEGATE, Chennai FY 2012-13 
to 2016-17

90387.78

Fringe Benefit 
Tax 

Fringe 
Benefit Tax 

demand 

Jurisdic�onal 
Assessing Officer

AY 2011-12 1530.00

Refer note no. 33.1(ii) of the financial statements.
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(xi) 

(a) During the course of our examina�on of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted audi�ng prac�ces in India, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, 
no�ced or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
Management.

(b) No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date 
of this report.

(c) As informed, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the 
year and upto the date of this report.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the 
order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act,2013 with respect to applicable transac�ons with the related par�es and the details of 
related party transac�ons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by 
the applicable accoun�ng standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examina�on, the Company does not have an internal 
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013.

(xv) Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�on with directors or person 
connected with them and therefore the provisions of sec�on 192 of the Companies Act’ 
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order is not 
applicable

(b)The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance ac�vi�es 
during the year. Accordingly, the repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regula�ons 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve 
Bank) Direc�ons, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, 
the repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately 
preceding financial year. There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors of the 
Company during the year.

(xviii) There has been resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year and the auditor has 
taken into considera�on the issues, objec�ons or concerns, if any, raised by the outgoing 
auditors.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realisa�on of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the 
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the 
assump�ons, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) 

(a) The company could not iden�fy a suitable project and the unspent amount of INR 
st

21,583.46 hundreds as at 31  March 2025 is yet to be spent/transferred to a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, as s�pulated. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there are 
no ongoing projects as per sec�on 135 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, repor�ng 
under clauses (xx)(b) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(xxi) There is no consolida�on of financial statements, accordingly repor�ng under clause 
3(xxi) is not applicable.

For MSKG &CO
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Regn. No.:008262N)

SD/
(CA. KAVISH GROVER)
Partner
M.No. 532617
UDIN: 25532617BMLILB9676
Place: KAITHAL
Date: 27-08-2025
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Annexure B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (”'the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over the financial repor�ng of ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS 

LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’ management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili�es include the 

design, implementa�on, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng 

effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’ 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note” and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the 

design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’ internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial 

control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of management 

and directors of the company; and
3. provide reasonable assurance regarding the preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, 

use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 

March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company 

considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MSKG &CO
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Regn. No.:008262N)

SD/
(CA. KAVISH GROVER)
Partner
M.No. 532617
UDIN: 25532617BMLILB9676
Place: KAITHAL
Date: 27-08-2025
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ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview

ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS  LIMITED [Formerly ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED _ the 

name of the said company has been changed to ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED on SIXTH day of 

JANUARY TWO THOUSAND TWENTY FIVE (06.01.2025)] (hence forth referred to as “the Company” was 

incorporated on 21st  day of November, 2010 with main objects of carrying on the business of Purchase, 

sale, hire, trade, import, export or otherwise deal in electrical/electronic display systems and to act as 

advisors and consultant in the field of electrical and electronic security and display system.

1. Significant Accoun�ng Policies :-                           

a. Basis Of Prepara�on Of Financial Statements:    

 These financial statements are prepared and presented on going concern basis under 

the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis of accoun�ng and in accordance with 

Generally Accepted Accoun�ng Principles (GAAP) in India. GAAP comprises mandatory 

accoun�ng standards as prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 

Act’ read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Act 

(to the extent no�fied). Further the pronouncements and the guidance notes issued by 

the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") are also considered. The 

Company has the presented financial statements as per the format prescribed by 

Schedule III, no�fied under the Companies Act, 2013.Accoun�ng policies have been 

consistently applied except where a newly issued accoun�ng standard is ini�ally 

adopted or a revision to an exis�ng accoun�ng standard requires a change in the 

accoun�ng policy hitherto in use. The management evaluates all recently issued or 

revised accoun�ng standards on an on-going basis. 

All the amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements are reported in Indian Rupees (`) _ 

rounded off to hundreds, except share data , per share data and unless stated 

otherwise. 

b. Use Of Es�mates:

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted 

Accoun�ng Principles (GAAP) requires management to make es�mates and 

assump�ons that affect the reported balances of assets and liabili�es and disclosures 

rela�ng to con�ngent liabili�es as at the date of the financial statements and reported 

amounts of income and expenses during the period. 

Although these es�mates are based on management's best knowledge of current 

events and ac�ons, uncertainty about these assump�ons and es�mates could result in 

the outcomes requiring the material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets, 

liabili�es, revenue and expenses in the future periods. Changes in es�mates are 

reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if 

material their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Any revision 

to accoun�ng es�mates is recognized prospec�vely in the current and future periods.

c. Current /Non Current classifica�on

All assets and liabili�es have been classified as current or non-current as per the 

Company's normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the 

Companies Act 2013.  In accordance with Schedule III of the Act, any asset or liability is 

classified as current if it sa�sfies any of the following condi�ons:

i. It is expected to be realized or se�led in the company’ normal opera�ng cycle;

ii. It is expected to be realized or se�led with in twelve months from the repor�ng 

date;

iii. In the case of an asset

1. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 

2. It is cash or cash equivalent, unless it is restricted from being exchanged 

or used to se�le a liability for at least twelve months from the repor�ng 

date;
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iv. In the case of a liability, the company doesn’ have an uncondi�onal right to defer 

se�lement of liability for at least twelve months from the repor�ng date.

All the other assets and liabili�es are classified as non-current.  Current 

Asset/Liabili�es include the current por�on of non current asset/liabili�es 

respec�vely.

1. An Asset shall be classifies as current when it sa�sfies the any of the 

following criteria :

a. It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consump�on in, 

the company's normal opera�ng cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

c. It is expected to be realised within twelve months a�er the repor�ng date; 

or 

d. It is Cash or cash equivalence unless it is restricted from being exchanged 

or used to se�le a liability for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng 

date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current. 

2. An opera�ng cycle is the �me between the acquisi�on of the asset for 

processing and their realiza�on in Cash or cash equivalents. Where the normal 

opera�ng cycle cannot be iden�fied, it is assumed to have a dura�on of twelve 

months. 

3. A liability shall be classified as current when it sa�sfies the any of the 

following criteria ; 

a. it is expected to be se�led in the Company’ normal opera�ng cycle;

b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. it is due to be se�led within twelve months a�er the repor�ng date; or

d. the Company does not have an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement of 

the liability for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng date. Terms of a 

liability that could, at the op�on of the counterparty, result in its 

se�lement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classifica�on.

All other liabili�es shall be classified as non-current.

d. Revenue Recogni�on: The Company follows the mercan�le system of accoun�ng and 

recognises income on an accrual basis in accordance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act 2013. Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is 

measured net off rebates, discounts and taxes. When there is uncertainty as to 

measurement or ul�mate collectability, revenue recogni�on is postponed un�l such 

uncertainty is resolved. Revenue is reported net off discounts.

i. Revenue from opera�ons

Revenue from opera�ons comprises of revenue from mainly adver�sing, 

represen�ng the gross value of service rendered by the Company to its 

customers net of indirect taxes.

Revenue is recognized only when risks and rewards incidental to ownership are 

transferred to customers, to the extent that it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be readily measured. 

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ul�mate collectability, 

revenue recogni�on is postponed un�l such uncertainty is resolved. Revenue 

from service is recognized as per the completed service contract method. 

Revenue is reported net of discounts.

For some of the services rendered, the Company collects indirect taxes on 

behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing 

to the Company. The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in it's 
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Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Other Income

Interest is recognized using �me propor�on method, based on the rates 

implicit in the transac�on.  Interest income is grouped under the head " Other 

Income" in the Statement of Profit and Loss

e. Expenditure

All expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

f. Input Tax Credit:

Input tax credit in respect of input services / goods are accounted and u�lized on 

accrual basis, in accordance with GST Act and Rules. The balance of Input tax credit is 

evaluated at the end of each period and amount expected to be ineligible Input tax 

credit are  charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

g. Property, Plant And Equipment

Property, Plant And Equipment are stated at cost including incidental expenses 

related to acquisi�on and installa�on, less accumulated deprecia�on and 

impairment if any. Direct costs are capitalized un�l the Property Plant And Equipment 

are ready for use. These costs includes non recoverable taxes, du�es or levies, freight 

and any other directly a�ributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condi�on 

for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to 

the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and 

maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. 

The cost and related accumulated deprecia�on are eliminated from the financial 

statements upon sale or re�rement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains and losses arising from re�rement or disposal of the Property, Plant And 

Equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss on the date of re�rement or disposal.

Deprecia�on on Property, Plant And Equipment

Deprecia�on on Property, Plant And Equipment is provided on wri�en down value 

method based on the useful lives of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the 

Companies  Act, 2013. Deprecia�on on addi�ons and dele�ons to Property, Plant 

And Equipment during the year is propor�onately charged. The useful lives of the 

Property, Plant And Equipment as es�mated by the management is as follows:
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*For these class of assets based on an internal assessment carried out, the 

management believes that the useful lives of the assets as given above, best 

represent the period over which the company expects to use the asset. Hence 

useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under 

the Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Deprecia�on Methods, Useful Lives and residual values are reviewed periodically 

including at each financial year end.

h. Intangible Assets: Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amor�za�on 

and impairment. Intangible assets are amor�zed over their respec�ve individual 

es�mated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for 

use. The es�mated useful life of an iden�fiable intangible asset is based on a number of 

factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, compe��on, and other 

economic factors. Amor�za�on methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically 

including at each financial year end.

Amor�za�on of Intangible Assets

The amor�za�on period and the amor�za�on method for an intangible asset are 

reviewed, at least, at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life or the 

expected pa�ern of consump�on of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is 

accounted for by changing the amor�za�on period or method, as appropriate, and are 

treated as changes in accoun�ng es�mates.

The useful life of the intangible asset as es�mated by the management is as follows:

i. Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment ('PPE') and Intangible Assets:

At each Balance Sheet date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of it's  "PPE" & 

Intangible assets included in each cash genera�ng unit to determine whether there is any 

indica�on that those assets were impaired. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable 

amount of the asset is es�mated in order to determine the extent of impairment.  

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. In assessing 

value in use, the es�mated future cash flows expected from the con�nuing use of the asset 

and from it's disposal or discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate  that 

reflects the current market assessments of �me value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income in the statement of Profit and Loss

j. Employee Benefits: 

i. Short Term Obliga�ons

Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are 

expected to be se�led wholly within 12 months a�er the end of the period in 

which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of 

employees’services up to the end of the repor�ng period and are measured at the 

amounts expected to be paid when the liabili�es are se�led. These benefits 

include salary, bonus, performance incen�ves and compensated absences. The 

liabili�es are presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in the balance 

sheet.

ii. Other Long-Term Employee Benefit Obliga�ons 

The liabili�es for earned leave are not expected to be se�led wholly within 12 

months a�er the end of the period in which the employees render the related 

service. They are therefore measured at the present value of expected future 
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payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 

repor�ng period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted 

using the market yields at the end of the repor�ng period that have terms approxima�ng 

to the terms of the related obliga�ons. 

The obliga�ons are presented as current liabili�es in the balance sheet if the en�ty does 

not have an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for at least twelve months a�er the 

repor�ng period, regardless of when the actual se�lement is expected to occur.

iii. Post- Employment Obliga�ons

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity;

(b) Defined contribu�on plans such as provident fund and Employees State 

Insurance Scheme; and

(c) Defined benefit plans such as Leave encashment.

iv. Post- Employment Obliga�ons

The liability or assets recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity & Leave 

Encashment plans is the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on at the end of 

the repor�ng period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obliga�on is 

calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined by discoun�ng the 

es�mated future cash ou�lows by reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng 

period on government bonds that have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related 

obliga�on.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the 

defined benefit obliga�on and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in 

employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Actuarial Gains or Losses through re-measurement of the net obliga�on of a defined 

benefit liability or asset is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan 

amendments or curtailment are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

v. Defined Contribu�on Plans 

The company pays provident fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme 

contribu�ons to publicly administered funds as per local regula�ons.

The Company has no further payment obliga�ons once the contribu�ons have been 

paid.

The contribu�ons are accounted for as defined contribu�on plans and the 

contribu�ons are recognized as employee benefit expenses when they are due.

vi. Bonus plans: 

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses in accordance with 

payment of Bonus Act. The Company recognizes a provision where contractually 

obliged or where there is a past prac�ce that has created a construc�ve obliga�on.

k. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost that are a�ributable to acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying 

assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as a part of cost of such asset. A qualifying 

asset is such asset which necessarily require substan�al period of �me to get ready for its 

intended use or sale. All other borrowing  costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss 

as incurred.

l. Taxa�on:

Tax expenses comprise current income tax and deferred tax. Tax impact of items directly 

charged to reserves is also adjusted in reserves.
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i.  Current Income Tax: 

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 

authori�es in accordance with provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. A provision 

is made for income tax annually based on the tax liability computed a�er 

considering tax allowances and exemp�ons. The tax rates and laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substan�vely enacted, at the 

repor�ng date. 

Provision for income tax is presented in the Balance Sheet a�er off se�ng advance 

tax paid and income tax provision arising thereon, where the company is able to 

and intends to se�le the asset and liability on net basis.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred  income taxes reflects the impact of �ming differences between taxable 

income and accoun�ng income origina�ng during the current year and reversal of 

�ming differences for earlier years. Deferred tax on �ming differences between 

taxable income and accoun�ng income is accounted for, using the tax rate and the 

tax laws enacted or substan�ally enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax liabili�es are recognized for all taxable �ming differences. Deferred 

tax assets are recognized for all deduc�ble �ming differences only to the extent 

that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 

available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. However, where 

the company has unabsorbed deprecia�on or carry forward of  tax losses, deferred 

tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 

evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 

deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es have been offset wherever the 

Company has a legal enforceable right to set off current tax assets against the 

current tax liabili�es and where deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability relates 

to the taxes on income levied by the same taxa�on laws. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and wri�en down or wri�en up to reflect the 

amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

The management’ judgement is required for the calcula�on of the provision for 

income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabili�es. The Company reviews at each 

balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets/liabili�es. The 

factors used in es�mates may differ from the actual outcome, which could lead to 

significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the Standalone Financial 

Statements.

m. Taxa�on :

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cash on deposit with banks. The Company considers 

all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months 

or less and that are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 

insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

n. Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for 

the effects of transac�ons of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 

opera�ng cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with 

inves�ng or financing cash flows.  The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing 

ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated.

o. Trade Receivables And Loans and Advances

Trade receivables and loans and advances are stated a�er wri�ng off debts/loans and 

advances considered as bad. Adequate provision is made for debts/loans and advances 

considered doub�ul ( if any).
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p. Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabili�es for goods and services provided to the Company prior 

to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as 

current liabili�es unless payment is not due with 12 months a�er the repor�ng period. 

Trade and other Payables are separately disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements.

q. Provisions:

Provisions are created when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve), 

as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable es�mate can be 

made for the amount of obliga�on. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and 

are determined based on the best es�mate required to se�le the obliga�on at the repor�ng 

date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 

best es�mates.

r. Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets:

A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events whose existence 

will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events, not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obliga�on that is not 

recognized because it is not probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on or the amount of obliga�on cannot be 

measured with sufficient reliability.

Disclosure for the con�ngent liability is also made when there is a possible obliga�on or a 

present obliga�on that may, but probably will not, require an ou�low of resources.

Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed  in the notes to the financial statements, unless the 

possibility of ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Con�ngent 

assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Con�ngent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

con�ngent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

s. Earnings Per Share:

i. Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit a�er tax 

a�ributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period.

ii. Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the purposes of calcula�ng diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the 

period a�ributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 

shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve 

poten�al equity shares.

t. Proposed Dividend:

Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is provided for in the book of accounts, which 

is subject to approval of the members at the Annual General Mee�ng.

u. Segment Repor�ng

Segments are iden�fied having regard to the dominant source, nature of risks and returns 

and internal organiza�on and management structure. The Company has considered 

business segment as primary segment for disclosure. The company is primarily engaged in a 

single segment and is governed by similar set of risks and returns. The geographical 

segment is considered as the secondary segment for disclosure.
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v. Commitment

Commitments are future liabili�es for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as 

follows:

i. es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 

not provided for;

ii. (b) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered 

material and relevant in

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of 

business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.
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iii)	Commitments:	NIL; except as stated in note no. 11.1
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D KMPs:
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Previous	Year:

List of entities where control/signi�icant in�luence exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken 
place and relationships

 
Mr. Sahil Mangla 

Addi�onal Director w.e.f. 22.05.2024 Appointed 

Managing Director cum 
Chairman 

w.e.f. January, 06, 2025 Appointed 

Mr. Aditya Vashistha Addi�onal Director w.e.f. 22.05.2024 Appointed 

Whole Time Director w.e.f. 07 January 2025 Appointed 

Mr. Pankaj Kumar 
Srivastava 

Director 
 

w.e.f. 24.05.2024 Resigned 

Ms. Namratha Hirani Director w.e.f. 22.05.2024 Resigned 

Mr. Shankar Agarwal Indpendent Director w.e.f. January, 06, 2025 Appointed 

Mr. Sahil Agarwal Indpendent Director w.e.f. January, 06, 2025 Appointed 

Ms. Sonal Garg Non-execu�ve Director w.e.f December 17, 2024 Appointed 

Mr. Rajendra Kumar 
Arora 

CFO w.e.f. January, 06, 2025 Appointed 

Ms. Daksha Agarwal CS w.e.f. January, 06, 2025 Appointed 

 

6

1 Deepak Kumar Srivastava (Late)

Key Managerial Persons
2 Pankaj Kumar Srivastava 

4 Anita Srivastava

Sl.	No Name	of	the	Related	Party Relationship

3

8

Regex Consulting Private Limited

Urbanize Developers (India) Private Limited

Urbanize Assets Private Limited

Namrata Hirani

5 Armour Security Solution

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel have 

signi�icant in�luence

10 Agile Techno Engineering Solutions Private Limited

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

13 Sachi Hirani

11

12

Anil K Hirani

Sanya Hirani

9 Siana Geospatial Services Private Limited

7



108



109



110

SD/SD/

SD/SD/
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ARMOUR DISPLAY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Registered O�ce: TL-7, 3RD FLOOR, ALSA MALL, NO.4, MONTIETH ROAD EGMORE, CHENNAI, Tamil Nadu, 

India, 600008

Corporate O�ce: A-154A, SECOND FLOOR SECTOR 63, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, Uttar 

Pradesh, India, 201301

CIN: U74900TN2010PLC078047

Website: armourdigitalooh.com
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